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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of CBK Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREEE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of CBK
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the "Group’), | am pleased to present to you the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The fiscal year 2018/2019 had been the toughest year in our
operating history. Hong Kong local consumption power has
been weakened by the unpredictable outcome of the Sino-US
trade war. People has become more budget conscious and
sensitive to the amount they spend on dining out.

Despite the above, the business environment of the food and
beverage industry remains challenging and highly competitive.
The industry continues to face pressure from rising costs in raw
materials, high rental, high labour cost coupled with shortage of
manpower and high labour turnover rate.

The increase in the number of hotpot restaurants in recent years
brought the hotpot market sector to saturation and as a result,
we saw increased rivalry among the players and highly
intensified competition. The availability of more and more
choices also affected brand loyalty among customers.

Looking ahead, we believe the severe market competition, the
weakening local economy and consumption sentiment, will
continue to adversely affect the food and beverage industry and
the Group's performance. The Group will maintain its prudent
management approach and will continuously adjust its business
strategies to respond to the changes in the industry and will
balance between expanding the Group's restaurant and closing
underperforming restaurants. The Group will adjust its business
model to maintain the Group’s competitive advantage and to
enhance its position in the hotpot market sector.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners and
customers for their ongoing support to the Group. At the same
time, | would like to express my appreciation to my fellow
Directors, our management team and the staff for their
substantial contribution and unwavering dedication to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board,

Wong Wai Fong
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE¥E
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue Wz 92,099 122,653
Loss before tax BREIATE 1B (18,839) (10,482)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year AR GG AEIRER
attributable to owners of the Company ElENEHEEAR (20,561) (9,746)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE 14,168 18,003
Current assets REEE 52,752 72,042
Total assets BEEHAE 66,920 90,045
Equity and liabilities EmMEE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANA B A A E{G R 60,447 81,008
Total equity B 60,447 81,008
Current liabilities REAaE 6,473 9,037
Total liabilities BERE 6,473 9,037
Total equity and liabilities EXZRAEAHE 66,920 90,045
Net current assets RBEEFE 46,279 63,005
Net assets EEFEE 60,447 81,008
BlXERAR AT /2019 FF R 7



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group operated seven
restaurants in Hong Kong under the brands of “Calf Bone
King”, "Calf Bone King Steam Pot”, "CBK Prince Club”, “3H
Island Fusion Pot” and “Hotpot Hongding.”

In spite of great effort initiated by the Group to expand its
business, the Group suffered from the worsening financial
results taking into account the severe market competition, the
weakening local economy, customer sentiment, intensified
market competition among hotpot operators, the rising costs of
raw materials, labour and rental in recent years.

In order to consolidate the Group's operations and to divert the
Group's resources to our new brands “3H Island Fusion Pot”
and Hotpot Hongding”, we closed three of our restaurants,
CYMT, CWC, and CCWB in April 2018, June 2018, and February
2019, respectively during the year. Their financial performances
were below our expectations and should the Group continue to
operate these restaurants, besides from having continuous
operating losses, the Group would have to spend a substantial
amount on renovation and refurbishment of these restaurants
upon the expiry of their rental leases.

To meet the ever-changing customer needs and to appeal to a
wider customer base, we strategically remodel our hotpot
dining concept by refreshing our image through the
introduction of new brands and new dining experience.

CTM was closed in early October 2018 to early November 2018
and CTP was closed in Mid-February 2019 to Mid-March for
renovation. After the renovation, the restaurants resumed
operations under our brand “3H Island Fusion Pot”. This brand
offers both hotpot and barbeque cuisines to customers in a
modern décor environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Miijﬁnj-nﬂﬂgﬁi *ﬁ'

CTST was closed in early October 2018 to late November 2018
for renovation. Through the introduction of a new brand
"Hotpot Hangding”, this restaurant offers authentic Sichuan

style spicy hotpot to customers in a classy setting.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased by
approximately HK$30.6 million to HK$92.1 million (2018:
approximately HK$122.7 million). The decrease in revenue was
mainly due to (i) the decrease in number of customer visits of
our existing restaurants as primarily affected by the sluggish
economy and the intense competition of the catering market; (ii)
the renovations of CTM, CTST and CTP which led to a
temporary suspension of business for one to two months during
the year; (iii) the closures of CYMT and CWC in April 2018 and
June 2018, respectively. The effect was partially offset by the
increase in revenue reflecting full year result of Yau Tsim Mong
restaurant which commenced its operation in September 2017.

Cost of inventories sold

Our cost of inventories sold decreased for the year ended 31
March 2019 by approximately HK$16.3 million to HK$35.5
million (2018: approximately HK$51.8 million). The cost of
inventories sold as a percentage of revenue decreased by
approximately 3.7% to 38.5% (2018: approximately 42.2%). The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in revenue as
mentioned above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased
by approximately HK$14.2 million to HK$56.6 million (2018:
approximately HK$70.8 million) and our gross profit margin
increased by approximately 3.8% to 61.5% (2018: approximately
57.7%). The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to
the changes in promotional campaigns which had a lesser
impact on gross profit margin as compared to the previous
promotional campaigns held by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Other revenue and other income

Our other revenue and other income for the year ended 31
March 2019 decreased by approximately HK$0.8 million to
HK$1.3 million (2018: approximately HK$2.1 million), which was
primarily due to the decrease in promotion income from
beverage suppliers.

Staff costs
Our staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased by
approximately HK$7.2 million to HK$28.3 million (2018:
approximately HK$35.5 million). The decrease was mainly due
to the closures of CYMT and CWC in April 2018 and June 2018,
respectively.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Our depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year
ended 31 March 2019 increased by approximately HK$0.2
million to HK$3.7 million (2018: approximately HK$3.5 million).
The increase was mainly due to the capital expenditure incurred
for the renovations of CTM and CTST in October and November
2018 respectively.

Property rentals and related expenses

Our property rentals and related expenses for the year ended
31 March 2019 decreased by approximately HK$0.9 million to
HK$25.1 million (2018: approximately HK$26.0 million). The
decrease was primarily due to the closures of CYMT and CWC
in April 2018 and June 2018, respectively. The effect was
partially offset by (i) the increase in rent for some of our existing
restaurants upon the renewal of tenancy agreements; and (i)
the increase in property rentals reflecting full year result of Yau
Tsim Mong restaurant, which commenced its operation in
September 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD AT

Fuel and utility expenses

Our fuel and utility expenses for the year ended 31 March 2019
decreased by approximately HK$0.9 million to HK$3.5 million
(2018: approximately HK$4.4 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the closures of CYMT and CWC in April 2018 and June
2018.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2019
remained relatively stable at approximately HK$14.0 million
(2018: approximately HK$14.0 million).

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the
Group had loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$20.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately HK$9.7 million), which was primarily attributable
to the decrease in revenue as discussed above.

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group's total assets as at 31 March 2019 decreased by
approximately HK$23.1 million to HK$66.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$90.0 million).

The Group's total liabilities as at 31 March 2019 decreased by
approximately HK$2.5 million to HK$6.5 million (2018:
approximately HK$9.0 million).

The equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
March 2019 decreased by approximately HK$20.6 million to
HK$60.4 million (2018: approximately HK$81.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we believe the severe market competition, the
weakening local economy and consumption sentiment, will
continue to adversely affect the food and beverage industry and
the Group's performance. The Group will maintain its prudent
management approach and will continuously adjust its business
strategies to respond to the changes in the industry and will
balance between expanding the Group’s restaurant and closing
underperforming restaurants. The Group will adjust its business
model to maintain the Group’s competitive advantage and to
enhance its position in the hotpot market sector. We will
consider to launch more new brands to meet growing customer
expectations on dining experience.

We will continue to explore the commercial viability of
extending our business hours. We have introduced such
measures in our restaurants by offering discounts for customers
who come for "happy hour” hotpot or “late night” hotpot at
the restaurants.

Recruiting and retaining talent is one of our priorities in the
coming year. We believe offering competitive salary is vital for
attracting and retaining talent although this will impact our
operating results. However, this can be mitigated by improving
on overall operational efficiency and by enhancing staff
communication at all levels.

Based on our success in the past, we remain optimistic about
the Group's future development. We intend to cautiously
execute our development plan as set forth in the Prospectus for
the purpose of bringing a desirable return to our shareholders
and facilitating the long-term growth of the business of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

The Company was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 15
February 2017 and the net proceeds raised by the Company
from the abovementioned Placing were approximately HK$53.5

BEMBRIEHE

RN AR 2017 F 2 A 15 B fE B 2 FT GEM
Em - MARRE LR ESSEMER
THFREANB5358E BT - R2019F3 A
million. As at 31 March 2019, the net proceeds has been applied 318 @ FIERIEERECBIEN T AE
and utilised as follows:

Amount
utilised as at
Actual net 31 March Unused
proceeds 2019 net proceeds
R2019F
BB 3A31H REARE
MIEFE EHAEHE MIEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET THExT
Opening new hotpot restaurants EREWE S 27,000 8,933 18,067
Setting up a central kitchen RIFREE 6,000 785 5,215
Enhancement of existing hotpot FHRIFENHRIE
restaurants 12,000 6,425 5,575
Strengthening information R BB R
technology system 2,000 561 1,439
Setting up a new head office SR A ER 3,000 1,467 1,533
General working capital —REEES 3,500 3,500 =
53,500 21,671 31,829
Opening new hotpot restaurants BRI AR5

The Company had originally planned to use approximately
HK$18.0 million and HK$9.0 million of the net proceeds to open
three and two new restaurants during the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2019, respectively. However, only one restaurant was
opened in Yau Tsim Mong district in September 2017. The cost
of the new restaurant was approximately HK$8.9 million.

The Company encountered a difficult and challenging market
environment since the beginning of the last financial year.
Facing such change in the market condition, the Company will
continue with its prudent site selection strategy to expand its
hotpot restaurants. The Company will only lease sites which
offer rent at rates suitable for hotpot restaurants which
traditionally have relatively shorter operating hours as compared
to other restaurants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

Setting up a central kitchen

The Company had planned to use approximately HK$6.0 million
of the net proceeds to establish a new central kitchen. In July
2017, the Company was able to secure a lease of premises in
Kwai Chung which have food processing facilities. As at 31
March 2019, a total of approximately HK$0.8 million was spent
on establishing the central kitchen. The reason for the lower
amount utilised as at 31 March 2018 was that the premises have
basic food processing and production equipment and utensils
where the Company has been using since July 2017 for the
processing and production of food for the Group's restaurants.
The management considered that these equipment and utensils
are sufficient to support the current level of production for the
Group's restaurants.

Enhancement of existing hotpot restaurants

The Company had planned to use approximately HK$6.0 million
and HK$6.0 million of the net proceeds to enhance its existing
hotpot restaurants. During the financial year, the Company had
renovated three of the restaurants, namely CTM, CTST and
CTP. The costs of the enhancement work of CTM, CTST and
CTP were approximately HK$1.4 million, HK$3.7 million and
HK$1.4 million, respectively.

Strengthening information technology system

The Company had planned to use approximately HK$2.0 million
of the net proceeds to upgrade the information technology
system. As at 31 March 2019, a total of approximately HK$0.6
million was spent on new computers and related hardware
peripherals. The management is considering to use
technological tools such as big data and mobile payment
systems to carry out marketing to targeted customers.

Setting up a new head office

The Company had planned to use approximately HK$3.0 million
of the net proceeds to set up a new head office. The head office
of the Company was finally relocated to a new premises in Kwai
Chung at the end of October 2017 at a cost of approximately
HK$1.5 million due to the efficient control of the relocation
costs through reusing the existing office furniture in the new
head office.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD AT

Except as explained above, the Company intends to continue
to apply the net proceeds received from the Placing in the
manner consistent with that mentioned in the section headed
"Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
However, the Directors will continue to evaluate the Group's
business objective and will change or modify plans against the
changing market condition to create greater value for the
shareholders.

All the unutilised balances have been placed in a licensed bank
in Hong Kong.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 15 February 2017. There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Group since then. The
share capital of the Group only comprises ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company'’s issued share capital was
HK$12,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
1,200,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual report,
the Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company did not have any significant
investment, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 136 employees in Hong
Kong (2018: 206 employees in Hong Kong), who had passed the
probationary period. Remuneration is determined with
reference to market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each individual's
performance, are paid to employees as recognition and in
reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits such as
medical insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are
offered to all our employees. Directors and other employees
who have made valuable contribution to the Group may also
receive options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE R WD AT

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange exposure. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
will monitor the foreign exchange exposure should the need
arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any mortgage or
charge over its assets.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 April 2019, Mr. Tam entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement (“SPA") with Mr. Kwok. Pursuant to the SPA, Mr.
Tam agreed to sell and Mr. Kwok agreed to purchase, 76
ordinary shares of Sure Wonder (representing Mr. Tam's 7.60%
shareholding in Sure Wonder)(the “Transfer”). The Transfer was
completed on 23 April 2019. After the Transfer, Sure Wonder
will be owned as to 83.4% by Ms. Wong, 9.3% by Mr. Kwok, 5.5%
by Mr. Hui and 1.8% by Ms. Yang.

On 1 June 2019, the Group had entered into an assets transfer
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has agreed to acquire, the entire property, plant and
equipment of Smart Sky Enterprises Limited (the “Assets”) for a
consideration of HK$500,000. The carrying amounts of the
Assets are approximately HK$177,000 as at 31 March 2019.
Details of the sale of Assets are disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 2 June 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Fong, aged 51, is our founder in December
2003, chairman of the Board, executive director, the chairman of
the legal compliance committee, a member of the remuneration
committee, a member of the nomination committee and one of
our Controlling Shareholders. She is primarily responsible for
overseeing overall business development strategies and major
business decisions of our Group. Ms. Wong is also a director of
the following subsidiaries of the Company: Asian Energy
Limited, Country Way Corporation Limited, Grand York
Development Limited, Harvest Wealth Enterprises Limited,
Honour Star Enterprises Limited, Jetech Consultants Limited,
Landshine Inc Limited, Lead Merit Limited, Moly Power Limited,
Most Will Limited, Smart Sino Enterprises Limited, Smart Sky
Enterprises Limited, Sunny Days Corporation Limited, Sunny
Galaxy Limited, Sunny Shadow Limited, Sure Gain Global
Limited, Tsui Bo Restaurant Limited and Voyage Won Limited.
Ms. Wong has over 14 years of experience in restaurant
business in Hong Kong, of which she has held managerial
position with our Group. Ms. Wong completed secondary
school education in Hong Kong in 1985.

Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. Kwok Yiu Cheung, one of our
chief executive officers. She is a director of Sure Wonder
Investments Limited, a Controlling Shareholder of our Group.

Saved as disclosed above, she was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. Chan Lap Ping, aged 51, is our executive director. Mr.
Chan joined our Group as general manager in January 2004. He
is primarily responsible for supervising the day-to-day
operations of our restaurants. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in restaurant operations in Hong Kong, of which he
worked as a manager of various restaurants responsible for
managing day-to-day operation of restaurants.

Mr. Chan attended primary and secondary school education in
Hong Kong from 1976 to 1983. Mr. Chan was awarded a
certificate in leadership and decision making skills by the Hong
Kong Management Association (B E R EXHE) in May 2007.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the legal compliance
committee, the remuneration committee and the audit
committee of our Group on 20 January 2017. Mr. Chan has over
10 years of corporate banking experience in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan has been employed by the American International
Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (“AlA”) since June 2009
as a business manager. Mr. Chan was subsequently promoted
to his current position as a career representative unit manager
in December 2014. He is responsible for management of a team
providing assistance to clients in respect of wealth management
and their insurance coverage. Prior to joining AlA, Mr. Chan
worked in the international and local banks in Hong Kong and
Australia. He was primarily responsible for managing clientele
portfolio, in respect of products structure, risk assessment and
profitability.

Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales in
Australia with a bachelor’s degree in commerce, majoring in
accounting and finance in October 1994. Mr. Chan has been a
practising Certified Public Accountant registered with the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants since
November 1997. He has also been admitted as an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since
February 2001.

Since June 2017, Mr. Chan became an independent non-
executive director of UTS Marketing Solutions Holdings Limited
(stock code: 6113), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
which principally carries on the business of providing
telemarketing services of financial products in Malaysia.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEE

Mr. Chung Wing Yin, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
remuneration committee, a member of the legal compliance
committee, the audit committee and the nomination committee
of our Group on 20 January 2017.

Mr. Chung was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in August 2002 and a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England and Wales in October 2003, respectively. He is a
partner of Chungs Lawyers and has over ten years’ experience
in legal professional industry. Before founding Chungs Lawyers,
Mr. Chung worked at several Hong Kong law firms. Mr. Chung's
practice areas include general commercial and corporate
matters, IPOs, mergers and acquisitions, and compliance
matters of listed companies. Mr. Chung was appointed as the
chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings Ordinance) by
the government of the Hong Kong Special administrative
Region in December 2018 and he was also appointed as a China
Appointed Attesting Officer (Hong Kong) by the Ministry of
Justice, the PRC in January 2019.

Since December 2014, Mr. Chung has been an independent
non-executive director of Canvest Environmental Protection
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1381), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange and principally carries on the business of
providing municipal solid wasting handling services and
operation and management of waste-to-energy plants. In July
2016, Mr. Chung was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Jilin Jiutai Rural Commercial Bank
Corporation Limited (stock code: 6122), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange and carries on the business of rural commercial
banking in Northeast China. Save as disclosed above, during
the three years immediately preceding the Latest Practicable
Date, Mr. Chung was not a director of a public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEE

Mr. Law Yui Lun, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the legal compliance committee, a
member of the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of our Company on 20 January 2017. Mr.
Law has over 20 years of experience in the accounting,
corporate taxation and financial advisory. Mr. Law has been the
sole proprietor of Y.L. Law and Company, a company which
provides consultancy and company secretarial services in Hong
Kong since June 1999.

Mr. Law obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Oklahoma City University in the United States in December
1991. Mr. Law has been admitted as a fellow of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom
since October 1990. Mr. Law has been admitted as an associate
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since May 1993.

Since April 2005, Mr. Law has been an independent non-
executive director of Shougang Concord Century Holdings
Limited (stock code: 103), a company listed on the Main Board
and principally carries on the business of steel cords
manufacturing, copper processing and trading of copper and
brass products. In November 2017, Mr. Law was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Dadi International
Group Limited (stock code: 8130), a company listed on GEM
and carries on the business of advertising and media related
services, provision of financial leasing and other financial
services and travel agency and related operations.

Saved as disclosed above, he was not a director in any listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwok Yiu Chung, aged 56, is our Chief Executive Officer
and one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Kwok joined our
Group in December 2003 as our manager. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operation and
management of our restaurants.

Mr. Kwok has over 20 years of experience in restaurant business
in Hong Kong. Prior to the establishment of our Group, before
2003, he held managerial positions with various restaurants
responsible for general operations and management of the
restaurants.

Mr. Kwok obtained a professional diploma in Chinese food and
beverage management from Tao Miao Institute of the
Vocational Training Council in September 2009. In recognition
of Mr. Kwok's experience in the restaurant industry in Hong
Kong, he has been appointed to various key positions of the
Hong Kong Federation of Restaurants & Related Trades (the
"Federation”) since 2007. From 2007 to 2011, Mr. Kwok was
appointed as a director of the Federation, who was responsible
for managing the corporate affairs of the Federation. During the
period between 2011 and 2015, he was appointed as a vice-
chairman of the executive and members affairs divisions of the
Federation. Mr. Kwok has been re-appointed as a director of
the Federation since 2015.

Since March 2018, Mr. Kwok has been an independent non-
executive director of MS Concept Limited (stock code: 8447), a
company listed on GEM and principally carries on the provision
of catering services in Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwok is the spouse of Ms. Wong Wai Fong, our executive
director and the chairman of our Board.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

Mr. Zhang Chi, aged 42, has been appointed as the chief
executive officer (China Business) of the Company since 23 April
2019. He is principally responsible for the strategic development
and management of the Group's business and operations in
China.

Mr. Zhang has over 15 years of experience in the restaurant and
catering industry in China. He held managerial positions with
large scale catering enterprises in China, responsible for
procurement, general operations and management. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Zhejiang Academy of Arts in 1995 and obtained
a China economy planner qualification in 2012.

Mr. Chan Yu Chi, aged 60, has been our Chief Financial Officer
since he joined our Group in January 2013. He is also a member
of the legal compliance committee of our Group. He is
principally responsible for overseeing our Group's overall
financial accounting and reporting as well as corporate
governance matters. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in the auditing and accounting profession.

Mr. Chan graduated from the Open University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as the Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong)
with three respective degrees. He obtained a bachelor’'s and a
master's degree in business administration in December 1995
and December 2001, respectively. He also obtained a master’s
degree of Electronic Commerce in December 2007. Mr. Chan
has been admitted as a certified public accountant of HKICPA
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
since January 1999. He has further become a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) since
September 1999 and has been its fellow since September 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEE

Mr. Chan Chun Ming, aged 46, is our human resources and
administrative system management director. He joined our
Group as a human resources manager in November 2010 and
was promoted to the current position on 1 January 2015. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our Group's overall human
resources and administration system management. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of experience in restaurant industry in Hong
Kong.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked as a director and a
consultant at KAR Consultants Company Limited from January
2007 to September 2010, where he was responsible for business
management. From March 1994 to April 2007, he gained
experience in human resources in the restaurant industry,
serving as a senior human resources officer at Fairwood
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0052), a company which operates
a leading fast food restaurant chain in Hong Kong and in
Greater China, where he was responsible for human resources
matters.

Mr. Chan was awarded the Certificate in Personnel
Management by the School of Continuing Education of Hong
Kong Baptist University. Mr. Chan obtained the 5-S Lead
Auditor (Green Belt) Certificate from HK5-S Association in
December 2008. He also obtained the ERS 5S Management
Certificate from Hong Kong Environmental Resource and Safety
Institute and the Basic Food Hygiene Certificate for Food
Hygiene Managers from Hong Kong Christian Service Kwun
Tong Vocational Training Council in April and October 2009,
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yu Chi is the company secretary of our Company. Mr.
Chan’s biography is set out in the subsection headed “Senior
Management” in this section.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Wong Wai Fong is the compliance officer of our Company.
Ms. Wong's biography is set out in the subsection headed
"Executive Directors” in this section.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

INTRODUCTION

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") under Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has fully complied
with all applicable provisions of the CG Code.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance from time to
time to ensure they comply with the statutory and the CG Code
and align with the latest developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board's primary responsibilities are to oversee the
management of the Group, to formulate the Group's long-term
corporate strategy including the formulation and approval of all
policy matters, internal control and risk management systems,
to evaluate the performance of the Group and to assess the
achievement of targets periodically set by the Board.

In addition, the Board has also established Board Committees
and has delegated to these Board Committees various
responsibilities set out in their terms of reference respectively.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to the executive
directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, there are two executive
directors, namely Ms. Wong Wai Fong (Chairman) and Mr. Chan
Lap Ping, and three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and
Mr. Law Yui Lun.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in

the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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Ms. Wong Wai Fong, our executive Director and chairman of
the Board, is the spouse of Mr. Kwok Yiu Cheung, one of our
chief executive officers.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and
financial expertise and independent judgement to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving
on various Board committees, all INEDs will make various
contributions to the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has at all times
met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent and
have met the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules up to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against
the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “"Board
Diversity Policy”) from the date of Listing up to the date of this
corporate governance report. A summary of this Board Diversity
Policy, together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this Board Diversity Policy, and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as
follows.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage. In reviewing and assessing the Board's
composition, the Board will consider a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, and industry and regional experience.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval. The Nomination Committee
will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered
that the Group achieved the Board Diversity Policy in the year
ended 31 March 2019.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the chairman and the chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the role of the chairman
of the Company is performed by Ms. Wong Wai Fong and the
executive functions of a chief executive are discharged by Mr.
Kwok Yiu Chung and Mr. Zhang Chi as the chief executive
officers of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(“INEDs")

The current independent non-executive directors are Mr. Chan
Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and Mr. Law Yui Lun.
The INEDs help the management to formulate the Group's
development strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with required
standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate
system to protect the interests of the Company and the
shareholders. The Company received the annual confirmation
from the INEDs in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered
all the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company would arrange and/or introduce some
training for the Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on the Directors’ training.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, all the Directors have
participated in continuous professional development and the
relevant details are set out below:

EERRHEERESTNEIETLEE R
STRIESTFRE X E ALSIE - REIE 2019
FI3IANBUEFE  2REFC2HEEE

BXRE - MIISMAHEMBEER

Directors Reading materials
= B A
Executive Directors HITEF

Ms. Wong Wai Fong (Chairman) ERFLL(EE) v
Mr. Chan Lap Ping PR A 4
Independent non-executive directors BUIFHITEE

Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew (RS E 4
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EXBEAE v
Mr. Law Yui Lun BEBTE 4

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND DIRECTORS'
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally agreed with
the Directors in advance. In addition to the above, notice of at
least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. For other
Board meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is usually sent to all
Directors together with the notice in order to give them an
opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion in the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting to provide them with materials
relating to the transactions to be discussed in the meeting in
order to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, other Directors and other relevant senior
management normally attend regular Board meetings and,
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other
major aspects of the Group.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

Accounting to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interest for substantial shareholders
or a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The M&A contains provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, four Board meetings
were held and one annual general meeting was held. The
attendance record of each Director at the meetings is set out in
the table below:

RAMEREMAEZERREEEEN
SR - BRERR —REN A IERE
NRAEZEXGHLENRARES
i MERERAHEERTER -

RERTEFEER  TAFREERR
FEFNEHRNEAR S BELAA
MNEFEER LRAESEEERNEE -
KR AR BRI HMENESHEF
EABEACEER ST S REXH
AERESHEIERRRZNER AN
BROR > MPABAAGZNEEAH -

HZE22019F3A3THIEFE > ©H8ITH
REFGEEN—ARBRBFRAE - K&
ENESTERNFELHEINTE

Board General
Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors Attended/Held Attended/Held
HEESS HERRBF
EEpR eBRE RERE
BITRE BOIR™
Executive Directors HITESE

Ms. Wong Wai Fong (Chairman) BERSLL(FE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chan Lap Ping BRI SR 4 4/4 11

Independent non-executive directors BUHFHITEF
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew PG E A 4/4 171
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EXKBEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Law Yui Lun EEB LA 4/4 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the legal compliance committee to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affair. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee has been established with its terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules, and paragraphs C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.
The audit committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and Mr. Law Yui
Lun, all being INEDs. Mr. Law Yui Lun currently serves as the
chairman of the audit committee. The committee is to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, by
satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal
controls of our Group, and as to the adequacy of the external
and internal audits.

With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the audit committee, among others, are as
follow:

(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditors, and to approve and
review the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards;

(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services;
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(d) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and the
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

(e) to discuss the internal control system with management of
our Group to ensure that the management of our Group
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system; and

()  to develop and review our Group's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board and monitor our Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The members of the audit committee should meet at least twice
a year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, four audit
committee meetings were held to review the Group’s annual
results and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2018, first
quarterly results for the three months ended 30 June 2018,
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2018,
and third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 and discuss the effectiveness of the corporate
governance, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters. Our Group's consolidated financial
statements in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 have
been reviewed by the audit committee. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the year ended 31 March 2019. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") be nominated for re-appointment
as the Company's auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

30 CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

d ERVHHRE FERSLER -
FEERENFTERS 2TEMLE
WERETAHEAMBRABER

(e) MAEEEIREHAREIERSR
NERAEBEEEEDETABRR
BRI AMNAMENERLG » &

M HIERBIANEENEEEGHRR
RESR YRAEESRDES A
MERAEENERRMNEHREENE
SOERREERE

ERZEENEREFELRITMAE
FHoREZE2019F3A3IBIEFE #
REEeBRITHNREEH UWEHASEE
HE2018F3A3IBILFENFEEE
MEHR BHE2018F6A30H Ikt =@ A
ME—FTEEE BHZE2018F9A30H
IEAREAMPHZESE  UEREE2018F
ANBILENBANE=FFHE '
MElim i EERRIR - WEPEEYE - B
EENMUBREET - AEEHZE2019
FIAINBLEFEMNGEYBHRERELR
BEZLZEeEN EFgHEEZEMEKE
MEEEHZE2019F3 8318 IEFERIN
EZESMIEaTEERDE - BZEES
BEREERFRAFTASREAEERGS
RN SEBET AR AR ([ BE ) AR A FIZ
E G



Corporate Governance Report
TREERBRE

The attendance record of each Director at the audit committee
meeting is set out in the table below:

Audit Committee

Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held
HEBEZZEES

EEnA KRB BITIRE
Mr. Law Yui Lun (Chairman) BB (LE) 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew BRIGHE ST A 4/4
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EKBEE 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee has been established with its terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The remuneration committee consists of four members,
namely Ms. Wong Wai Fong, the executive director, and Mr.
Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and Mr. Law Yui
Lun, being the INEDs. Mr. Chung Wing Yin currently serves as
the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The remuneration committee is obliged to report to the Board
on its decisions or recommendations. With reference to the
terms of reference of remuneration committee, the primary
duties, among others, are as follow:

(@) to formulate remuneration policy for the approval of the
Board;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board on our Group's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

() to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

(d) to determine, with delegated responsibility or make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management of our Group;
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(e)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management of our Group for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to consider the performance bonus for executive directors,
senior management and general staff, having regard to
their achievements against the performance criteria and by
reference to market norms, and make recommendations
to the Board.

The members of the remuneration committee should meet at

least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, one

remuneration committee meeting was held to review and make

recommendations on the remuneration package of the directors

and senior management.

The attendance record of each Director at the remuneration

committee meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Director
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EEREREBEABNHMAZE -
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Remuneration
Committee Meeting
Attended/Held
HETMESES
REBITIRE

BEEHS

Mr. Chung Wing Yin (Chairman) EARBLRE(EE)
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew PRIGHESE

Mr. Law Yui Lun EEBEE

Ms. Wong Wai Fong mEFXL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee has been established with its terms of

reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code.

The nomination committee of our Group consists of four

members, namely Ms. Wong Wai Fong, the executive director,
and Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and Mr.
Law Yui Lun, being the independent non-executive directors.

Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew currently serves as the chairman of

the nomination committee.

The nomination committee is obliged to report to the Board on

its decisions or recommendations. With reference to the terms

of reference of nomination committee, the primary duties,

among others, are as follow:

(a)

to formulate nomination policy for the Board'’s
consideration and implement the Board's approved
nomination policy;

to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement our Group's
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors
when such are tendered and to make recommendations to
the Board on the candidacy of the nominees, having
regard to the Board’s compositional requirements and
suitability of the nominees;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors and review the independent non-executive
directors’ confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance
report;
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(/)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of our Group; and

regularly review the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to our Group, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing
them.

The members of the nomination committee should meet at
least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, one
nomination committee meeting was held to review and assess (i)
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, (ii) the independence
of independent non-executive directors, and (iii) the
performance of the directors. The nomination committee had
also made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the nomination
committee meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Director

 REEXBEFZETEERESZT(LE
EEFRTFNMAEBEITHAER)®
HEEREZTSREES

(@) EHRNEFNEITEANRNEEDN
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Nomination
Committee Meeting
Attended/Held
HEREZSS®
REBITIRE

E=nE

Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew (Chairman) BRIG I SAE (F )
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EXBEAE

Mr. Law Yui Lun EEBEAE

Ms. Wong Wai Fong mEFXL
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LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A legal compliance committee has been established for the
purpose of assisting in overseeing compliance with laws and
regulations relevant to our operations as well as the adequacy
and effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and
system. The legal compliance committee comprises: (i) Ms.
Wong Wai Fong, the chairman of the Board and an executive
director; (ii) Mr. Chan Yu Chi, the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company; (iii) Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen
Matthew, an independent non-executive director; (iv) Mr. Chung
Wing Yin, an independent non-executive director; and (v) Mr.
Law Yui Lun, an independent non-executive director.

With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the legal compliance committee, among
others, are as follow:

(@) to review the effectiveness of the Group's regulatory
compliance procedures and system, including operational
and compliance procedures and risk management
functions;

(b) to assess and review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, and training programmes in
relation to the Group's regulatory compliance functions;

() to assist the audit committee of the Company in
overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions,
which includes (i) developing and reviewing the policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the audit committee on a quarterly
basis; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; and (iv) reviewing the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report to be included in the annual report of
the Company;
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(d) to receive and handle any actual or suspected non-

The

compliance matters reported by the employees of the
Group and engage external professional advisers to assist
in the preparation of reports and recommendations in
respect of such actual or suspected non-compliance
matters; and

to review the effectiveness of the Group’s ongoing
measures to prevent future noncompliance incidents and
provide updates on the applicable laws related to the
Group's business operations with the assistance of external
professional parties including legal advisers as to Hong
Kong law, compliance adviser, and internal control
consultant from time to time.

members of the legal compliance committee should meet

at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2019, one

legal compliance committee meeting was held to review and

assess (i) the compliance policies of the Company against the

app

licable laws and regulations and (ii) the training and

continuing professional development of the directors and

senior management.

The
com

attendance record of each Director at the legal compliance
mittee meeting is set out in the table below:

BYWMEETMHASERE RS
MERIERTEREE LEB
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BESNEEEGHZESHELEENT
=

Legal Compliance
Committee Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held

HELEEREZEES
EEnR KRB BITRE
Ms. Wong Wai Fong (Chairman) BREFLT(E/E) 1”1
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew BROGRE ST A& 171
Mr. Chan Yu Chi BRANF S A 1”1
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EKBEE /1
Mr. Law Yui Lun BEBSLE 1
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The Group's independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited ("HLB"). The remuneration for the audit
and non-audit services provided by HLB (including its affiliates)
to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately as follows:

BEE &
RNEBMOBILINEZ SR ARG EFTAIE
BAHERAR(TBE]) - EG(RER
AN )REE2019F3A31HIEFEEM
AN ER B R B B R FE AR BAR T B0 18 40 BM
T

Amount

ot ]

Type of Services (HK$'000)
PR 7 38 B (F%&7x)
Audit services ZE RS 857
Non-audit services LB IR S
Total 1@t 862

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management systems.
Such internal control and risk management systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board had conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management systems once
during the year ended 31 March 2019 which covered financial,
operational, compliance, procedural and risk management
functions and had considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function.
In light of the size and scale of the Group's business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group. The
Board will review and consider to establish such department as
and when it thinks necessary.

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year ended
31 March 2019 and the review is completed as at the date of
this annual report.

PR B 12 i Kz L e B
EELEREARAEB AT RER
ERRFBRMZEE - AN EE LA
S ERAREEEEMIEERREERE
BEZZER - WEA] g% EAHEMRME
eI kIR A IBEL IEBY 2 IRE - B
E2019F3ANHLEFEEESEHA
EERIEE MEBRE IR RS 2B RIS
T—XBE - EREBEYK - 8- 4
REFLRREEBESHE  WEER
RN RV ERRBEFTM2ER
BTEREMES  URBIES ZHFIR
BREEBEERS - ERNAEBEEKHNR
BEREE AR EFSHARRINGIEEE
EEMARE#ETTES  MARABEH
I AN B A2 A ERE AT B s RO BB
TE AEEVENBEAIT - EFS
RSN E BB E E R R EFT o

AEBEDREINERER - BLEZE 2019
FIANB I FEETHELABEGE
L YR AFRAHPTHES -

BRZERBRAQF /2019 FF R 37



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The
Group has therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality
of corporate governance. It has established a highly effective
system of internal controls and adopted a series of measures to
ensure its safety and effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able
to safeguard its assets and protect the interests of its
shareholders.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and
risk management are effective and there are no irregularities,
improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that suggest material
deficiency in the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements and
ensuring that the consolidated financial statements for each
financial year are prepared to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profitability and cash flows of the Group for that
period in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors have adopted
appropriate and consistent accounting policies and made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimations. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the state of
affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement of
the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yu Chi is the company secretary of the Company. The
biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules,
Mr. Chan had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2019.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'’
RIGHTS

The Company uses a number of channels to communicate to
shareholders and investors on the performance of the
Company, including (i) the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the AGM or extraordinary general meeting
which provide a forum for shareholders of the Company to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) key
information on the Group is available on the website of the
Company; and (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serve the shareholders on all share registration matters. The
Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standard of disclosure and financial transparency.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which at
least 21 days’ notice is given. The chairperson of the Board on
other Directors are available to answer shareholders’ questions
on the Group's business at the meetings. All shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and to
put forward an agenda for consideration.

According to Article 23 of the Articles of Association, one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company, have the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall
deposit a written notice (the “Written Notice"”) to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
1501, 15/F., Vanta Industrial Centre, 21-33 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Written Notice (i)
must include the personal information of the Candidate as
required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and (ii) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and
consent of the publication of his/her personal information. The
period for lodgment of the Written Notice shall commence on
the day after the despatch of the notice of general meeting and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

In order to ensure the shareholders have sufficient time to
receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting,
shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Written Notice
as early as practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior
to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Shareholders may send written enquiries by post, together with
his/her contact details, such as postal address, email or fax,
addressing to the Board at the head office of the Company at
the following address:

CBK Holdings Limited

Room 1501, 15/F., Vanta Industrial Centre
21-33 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy that aims to
enhance the shareholders’ value. The Company's ability to pay
dividends will depend on, among others, our result of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, general business
conditions and strategies, our operating and capital
requirements, the amount of distributable profits based on the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong and
other factors which the Board deems relevant and having
regard to the director’s fiduciary duties.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors'’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all
Directors, the Company confirms that the Directors have
complied with such required standard of dealings and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions from the date of Listing and up to the date of this
report.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group believes that there are certain risk and uncertainties
involved in its operations, some of which are beyond our
Group's control. Our Group has categorised these risks and
uncertainties into: (i) risks relating to our business; and (ii) risks
relating to our industry. Some of our principal risk and
uncertainties include:

e we are susceptible to instances of food poisoning,
customer complaints and any other negative publicity
associated with our restaurants or food safety in general, in
which case value of our brands may suffer;

e  hotpot dining may lose popularity and our financial
conditions and future growth may be adversely affected;

e the lack of suitable locations on commercially viable terms,
the increase in rental expenses and failure to renew
existing leases of the leased properties may adversely
affect our results of operations;

e our profitability is dependent upon the spending power of
our target consumers and a decline of such spending
power may adversely affect our business;

®  opening new hotpot restaurants may result in fluctuations
in our financial performance; and

e our overall performance may be affected by temporary
suspension of our operations for renovation and closure of
certain restaurants.

For further details about the principal risk and uncertainties of
the Group for the year, please refer to "“Risk Factors” section of
the Prospectus.
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Our Group has established structures and measures to manage

our risks, including but not limited to the following:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

our Board conducts a thorough examination of any
material risks associated with any material business
decision before making or approving such decision;

our senior management monitors daily operations and any
associated operational risks of our Group. They are also
responsible for identifying and assessing potential market
risks related to fluctuations in industrial environment and
movements in market variables and report irregularities in
connection with operational and market risks to our
executive Directors for formulating policies to mitigate
these risks;

our audit committee reviews the internal control system
and procedures for compliance with the requirements of
applicable laws and regulations and the Corporate
Governance Code, details of which are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report;

our Group has engaged an external professional
consultant to conduct independent internal control review
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the review is
completed as at the date of this annual report; and

our Group has appointed an external legal adviser to
advise us on compliance with and to provide us with
updates on the changes in the GEM Listing Rules and the
applicable Hong Kong laws, rules and regulations from
time to time and as required.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 28

to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activity

of the Group is the provision of catering services in Hong Kong.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
the financial position of the Group as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 159.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group is set out on page 160 of the annual
report. The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 March 2019, current assets amounted to HK$52.8
million (2018: HK$72.0 million) of which HK$45.5 million (2018:
HK$62.3 million) was cash and bank balances, HK$6.7 million
(2018: HK$7.2 million) was trade receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables. The Group’s current
liabilities amounted to HK$6.5 million (2018: HK$9.0 million),
including trade payables and accrued charges and other
payables in the amount of HK$6.5 million (2018: HK$9.0 million).
Current ratio and quick assets ratio were 8.1 and 8.1 respectively
(2018: 8.0 and 8.0 respectively).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual report,
the Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets as of 31 March 2019.
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Comparison of Business Strategies and Actual Business
Progress

An analysis comparing the business strategies as set out in the
Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Business Strategies

ES HIREE

ERRBETREBERNLER
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Actual progress

Expanding our restaurant network in
strategic locations

FESR B M B0 PR B AR AR

Upgrading our existing restaurants.

We are in the process of identifying locations for
the new hotpot restaurants.

AP IEEREE R A SR BB AR o

We had renovated three of our restaurants, namely

CTM, CTST and CTP during the year.
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During the second half of 2018 and in 2019, we encountered
more intense competition in the food and beverage market. In
particular, there have been more competitors entering into the
hotpot market. Apart from traditional Cantonese hotpot, there
are new brands and styles of hot pot chains entering into the
market, such as Japanese style, Taiwanese style and Chongging
style. Facing more competitors in the market, our operating and
financial results fell short of our expectation. Given this situation,
we consider that we should slow down our pace in opening new
restaurants. In view of unstable market prospects and intensified
competition, we consider that we should be more conservative
in terms of timing and pace in utilising our placing proceeds.
While we do not intend to change the planned purpose of the
use of our placing proceeds at the moment, our management
team considers that by slowing down our pace of opening new
restaurants, we can explore different ways to tackle the market
competition, including but not limited, by (i) adjusting our style
in certain of our outlets by changing our brand as “Calf Bone
King” to “3H Island Fusion Pot” and “"Hotpot Hongding”; (ii)
continuously searching new styles of hotpot from Taiwan and
other Asia countries; and (iii) opening new restaurants in new
potential locations such as in shopping malls and potentially, in
the PRC.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING

On 15 February 2017, the Company’s shares were listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. A total of 300,000,000 new ordinary
shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were issued at HK$0.25 per share for a total of HK$75.0 million.
The net proceeds raised by the Company from the
abovementioned Placing were approximately HK$53.5 million.
The Company intends to continue to apply the net proceeds in
accordance with the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

From the Listing Date of the Company to 31 March 2019, the
net proceeds had not been utilised.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made charitable donations.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company'’s share capital and movements during
the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 81 and note 25(b) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has no reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Apart from the contracts relating to the reorganisation of our
Group in relation to the listing and save as disclosed in the
"Continuing Connected Transaction” in this report and note 26
to consolidated financial statements to this annual report, no
other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates had an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,

with the businesses of the Group during the year ended or as at
31 March 2019.

The Company has received an annual written declaration from
each of the Controlling Shareholders, i.e. Ms. Wong Wai Fong,
Mr. Kwok Yiu Chung, Mr. Tam Wai Shing, Mr. Hui Chun Wah,
Ms. Yang Dongxiang and Sure Wonder Investments Limited (the
“Covenantors”), in respect of the compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition undertakings given by them (the
“Undertakings”).

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the compliance by each of the Covenantors with the
Undertaking during the year ended 31 March 2019. The
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that, as
far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any of the
Covenantors of the Undertaking given by them and were
satisfied that the terms of the Undertakings had been complied
for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the share option scheme disclosed below, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in
section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of
the Share Option Scheme conditionally adopted by the
resolutions in writing of all the shareholders passed on 20
January 2017 (the “Adoption Date"”). The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers
of our Group and to promote the success of the business
of our Group.
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(B)

(€

(D)

Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such
terms as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant or adviser of our Group, or
any substantial shareholder of our Group, or any
distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
partner or service provider of our Group, options to
subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph (iii) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case
may be, our independent non-executive directors) from
time to time on the basis of his contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of our Group.

Price of shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price solely determined by our Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of:
(i) the closing price of our Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average
of the closing prices of our Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant of the option. For the purpose of calculating the
subscription price, where our Company has been listed on
the Stock Exchange for less than five business days, the
issue price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange shall be
used as the closing price for any business day fall within
the period before Listing.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.0.
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(E) Maximum number of shares

50

(a)

Subject to sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) below, the
maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company as from the Adoption Date (excluding, for
this purpose, Shares issuable upon exercise of
options which have been granted but which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of
our Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
our Shares in issue as at the Listing Date (taking no
account of any Shares may be issued upon the
exercise of the Offer Size Adjustment Option).
Therefore, it is expected that our Company may grant
options in respect of up to 120,000,000 Shares (or
such numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 120,000,000 Shares
from time to time) to the participants under the Share
Option Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed
at any time by approval of the shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company must
not exceed 10% of our Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit. A circular must be
sent to our shareholders containing the information
as required under the GEM Listing Rules in this
regard.
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(c) Our Company may seek separate approval by our
shareholders in general meeting for granting options
beyond the 10% limit provided the options in excess
of the 10% limit are granted only to grantees
specifically identified by our Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, our Company must
send a circular to our shareholders containing a
generic description of such grantees, the number and
terms of such options to be granted and the purpose
of granting options to them with an explanation as to
how the terms of the options will serve such purpose
and all other information required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

(d) The aggregate number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company must not exceed 30% of our Shares
in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of our Company if this will
result in such 30% limit being exceeded.

(F) Maximum number of shares of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of our
Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by shareholders in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting. In such
event, our Company must send a circular to our
shareholders containing the identity of the grantee, the
number and terms of the options to be granted (and
options previously granted to such grantee), and all other
information required under the GEM Listing Rules. The
number and terms (including the subscription price) of the
options to be granted must be fixed before the approval
of our shareholders and the date of the Board meeting
proposing such further grant should be taken as the date
of grant for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price.
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(G) Grant of options to certain connected persons

52

(a)

Any grant of an option to a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of our Company (or any of
their respective associates) must be approved by our
independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the
grantee of the option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive
director (or any of their respective associates) will
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant:

() representing in aggregate over 0.1% of our
Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of our Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options is required to be
approved by our shareholders at a general meeting
of our Company, with voting to be taken by way of
poll. Our Company shall send a circular to our
shareholders containing all information as required
under the GEM Listing Rules in this regard. All
connected persons of our Company shall abstain
from voting (except where any connected person
intends to vote against the proposed grant). Any
change in the terms of an option granted to a
substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates
is also required to be approved by our shareholders
in the aforesaid manner.
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(H) Restrictions on the times of grant of options

(a)

Our Company may not grant any options after inside

information has come to its knowledge until such

inside information has been announced. In particular,

no options may be granted during the period

commencing one month immediately preceding the

earlier of:

U]

(ii)

the date of the Board meeting (as such date is
first notified to the Stock Exchange in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules) for the
approval of our Company'’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or other interim period
(whether or not required under the GEM Listing
Rules); and

the deadline for our Company to publish an
announcement of the results for any year, half-
year or quarterly under the GEM Listing Rules,
or other interim period (whether or not required
under the GEM Listing Rules).

Further to the restrictions in paragraph (a) above, no

option may be granted to a Director on any day on

which financial results of our Company are published:

during the period of 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of the annual
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of
the relevant financial year up to the publication
date of the results; and

during the period of 30 days immediately
preceding the publication date of the quarterly
results and half-year results or, if shorter, the
period from the end of the relevant quarterly or
half-year period up to the publication date of
the results.
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Q)

(K)

(L)

54

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Performance targets

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant options, there is no
performance target which must be achieved before any of
the options can be exercised.

Ranking of Shares

Our Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option
will be subject to all the provisions of the Articles for the
time being in force and will rank pari passu in all respects
with our fully paid Shares in issue on the date of allotment
and accordingly will entitle the holders to participate in all
dividends or other distributions paid or made after the
date of allotment other than any dividend or other
distribution previously declared or recommended or
resolved to be paid or made with respect to a record date
which shall be on or before the date of allotment, save that
our Shares allotted upon the exercise of any option shall
not carry any voting rights until the name of the grantee
has been duly entered on the register of members of our
Company as the holder thereof.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option shall not be transferable or assignable and shall
be personal to the grantee of the option.
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(M) Rights on cessation of employment by death

(N)

In the event of the death of the grantee (provided that
none of the events which would be a ground for
termination of employment referred to in (N) below arises
within a period of three years prior to the death, in the
case the grantee is an employee at the date of grant), the
legal personal representative(s) of the grantee may
exercise the option up to the grantee's entitlement (to the
extent which has become exercisable and not already
exercised) within a period of 12 months following his death
provided that where any of the events referred to in (Q), (R)
and (S) occurs prior to his death or within such period of 12
months following his death, then his legal personal
representative(s) may so exercise the option within such of
the various periods respectively set out therein.

Rights on cessation of employment by dismissal

In the event that the grantee is an employee of our Group
at the date of grant and he subsequently ceases to be an
employee of our Group on any one or more of the grounds
that he has been guilty of serious misconduct, or has
committed an act of bankruptcy or has become insolvent
or has made any arrangement or composition with his or
her creditors generally, or has been convicted of any
criminal offence involving his integrity or honesty or (if so
determined by the Board) on any other ground on which
an employer would be entitled to terminate his
employment at common law or pursuant to any applicable
laws or under the grantee’s service contract with our
Group, his option shall lapse automatically (to the extent
not already exercised) on the date of cessation of his
employment with our Group.
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(O) Rights on cessation of employment for other

(P)

56

reasons

In the event that the grantee is an employee, a consultant
or an adviser (as the case may be) of member of our Group
at the date of grant and he subsequently ceases to be an
employee, a consultant or an adviser (as the case may be)
of our Group for any reason other than his death or the
termination of his employment of an employee or
engagement of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may
be) on one or more of the grounds specified in (N) above,
the option (to the extent not already lapsed or exercised)
shall lapse on the expiry of three months after the date of
cessation of such employment of an employee or
engagement of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may
be) (which date will be in the case of an employee the last
actual working day, on which the grantee was physically at
work with our Company or the relevant member of our
Group whether salary is paid in lieu of notice or not, and in
the case of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may be),
the last actual day of providing consultancy or advisory
services to the relevant member of our Group).

Effects of alterations to share capital

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of our
Company whilst any option remains exercisable, whether
by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issue,
open offer, consolidation, subdivision or reduction of the
share capital of our Company (other than an issue of
Shares as consideration in respect of a transaction to which
any member of our Group is a party), such corresponding
adjustments (if any) shall be made in the number of Shares
subject to the option so far as unexercised; and/or the
subscription prices, as the auditors of or independent
financial adviser to our Company shall certify or confirm in
writing (as the case may be) to the Board to be in their
opinion fair and reasonable in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the GEM Listing Rules, or any guideline or
supplemental guideline issued by the Stock Exchange
from time to time, provided that any alteration shall give a
grantee, as near as possible, the same proportion of the
issued share capital of our Company as that to which he
was previously entitled, but no adjustment shall be made
to the effect of which would be to enable a Share to be
issued at less than its nominal value.
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(Q) Rights on a general offer

(R)

(S)

In the event of a general offer (whether by way of takeover
offer or scheme of arrangement or otherwise in like
manner) being made to all our shareholders (or all such
holders other than the offeror and/or any persons
controlled by the offeror and/or any person acting in
association or concert with the offeror) and such offer
becoming or being declared unconditional, the grantee
(or, as the case may be, his legal personal representative(s))
shall be entitled to exercise the option in full (to the extent
not already lapsed or exercised) at any time within one
month after the date on which the offer becomes or is
declared unconditional.

Rights on winding-up

In the event a notice is given by our Company to our
members to convene a general meeting for the purposes
of considering, and if thought fit, approving a resolution to
voluntarily wind-up our Company, our Company shall on
the same date as or soon after it despatches such notice to
each member of our Company give notice thereof to all
grantees and thereupon, each grantee (or, as the case may
be, his legal personal representative(s)) shall be entitled to
exercise all or any of his options at any time not later than
two business days prior to the proposed general meeting
of our Company by giving notice in writing to our
Company, accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the aggregate subscription price for our Shares
in respect of which the notice is given whereupon our
Company shall as soon as possible and, in any event, no
later than the business day immediately prior to the date
of the proposed general meeting referred to above, allot
the relevant Shares to the grantee credited as fully paid.

Rights on compromise or arrangement

In the event of a compromise or arrangement between our
Company and our shareholders or the creditors of our
Company being proposed in connection with a scheme for
the reconstruction of our Company or its amalgamation
with any other company or companies pursuant to the
Companies Law, our Company shall give notice thereof to
all the grantees (or, as the case may be, their legal personal
representatives) on the same day as it gives notice of the
meeting to our shareholders or the creditors to consider
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such a compromise or arrangement and the options (to
the extent not already lapsed or exercised) shall become
exercisable in whole or in part on such date not later than
two business days prior to the date of the general meeting
directed to be convened by the court for the purposes of
considering such compromise or arrangement
(""Suspension Date'’), by giving notice in writing to our
Company accompanied by a remittance for the full amount
of the aggregate subscription price for our Shares in
respect of which the notice is given whereupon our
Company shall as soon as practicable and, in any event, no
later than 3:00 p.m. on the business day immediately prior
to the date of the proposed general meeting, allot and
issue the relevant Shares to the grantee credited as fully
paid. With effect from the Suspension Date, the rights of
all grantees to exercise their respective options shall
forthwith be suspended. Upon such compromise or
arrangement becoming effective, all options shall, to the
extent that they have not been exercised, lapse and
determine. The Board shall endeavour to procure that our
Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options
hereunder shall for the purposes of such compromise or
arrangement form part of the issued share capital of our
Company on the effective date thereof and that such
Shares shall in all respects be subject to such compromise
or arrangement. If for any reason such compromise or
arrangement is not approved by the court (whether upon
the terms presented to the court or upon any other terms
as may be approved by such court), the rights of grantees
to exercise their respective options shall with effect from
the date of the making of the order by the court be
restored in full but only up to the extent not already
exercised and shall thereupon become exercisable (but
subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme) as
if such compromise or arrangement had not been
proposed by our Company and no claim shall lie against
our Company or any of its officers for any loss or damage
sustained by any grantee as a result of such proposal,
unless any such loss or damage shall have been caused by
the act, neglect, fraud or wilful default on the part of our
Company or any of our officers.
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(T) Lapse of options
An option shall lapse automatically on the earliest of:

(V)

(iii)

(vii)

the expiry of the period referred to in paragraph (I)
above;

the date on which the Board exercises our Company's
right to cancel, revoke or terminate the option on the
ground that the grantee commits a breach of
paragraph (L);

the expiry of the relevant period or the occurrence of
the relevant event referred to in paragraphs (M), (O),

(Q), (R) or (S) above;

subject to paragraph (R) above, the date of the
commencement of the winding-up of our Company;

the occurrence of any act of bankruptcy, insolvency or
entering into of any arrangements or compositions
with his creditors generally by the grantee, or
conviction of the grantee of any criminal offence
involving his integrity or honesty;

where the grantee is only a substantial shareholder of
any member of our Group, the date on which the
grantee ceases to be a substantial shareholder of
such member of our Group; or

subject to the compromise or arrangement as
referred to in paragraph (S) become effective, the
date on which such compromise or arrangement
becomes effective.

Cancellation of options granted but not yet
exercised
Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised may

be effected on such terms as may be agreed with the

relevant grantee, as the Board may in its absolute

discretion sees fit and in a manner that complies with all

applicable legal requirements for such cancellation.
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(V) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on the date on the Adoption
Date and shall expire at the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof unless terminated earlier by the shareholders in
general meeting.

(W) Alteration to the Share Option Scheme

()  The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any
respect by resolution of the Board except that
alterations of the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme which alters to the advantage of the grantees
of the options relating to matters governed by Rule
23.03 of the GEM Listing Rules shall not be made
except with the prior approval of the shareholders in
general meeting.

(i) Any amendment to any terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme which are of a material nature
or any change to the terms of options granted, or any
change to the authority of the Board in respect of
alteration of the Share Option Scheme must be
approved by shareholders in general meeting except
where the alterations take effect automatically under
the existing terms of the Share Option Scheme.

(i)  Any amendment to any terms of the Share Option
Scheme or the options granted shall comply with the
relevant requirements of the GEM Listing Rules and
the notes thereto and the supplementary guidance
on the interpretation of the GEM Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange from time to time or any
guidelines issued by the Stock Exchange from time to
time.

(X) Termination to the Share Option Scheme

60

Our Company by resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the
Share Option Scheme and in such event no further options
will be offered but options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.
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(Y) Conditions of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme is conditional upon the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in,
our Shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise
of any options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme, and commencement of dealings in the
Shares on the Stock Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, no option has been
granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to the rental agreement dated 19 September 2016
made between Smart Elegant Enterprises Limited (“Smart
Elegant”) and Most Will Limited (“Most Will"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Most Will is entitled to occupy the
premises for the period from 1 September 2016 to 31 August
2019 in accordance with the terms of the agreement. Ms. Wong,
a director of the Company, is interested in this transaction to
the extent that Ms. Wong has equity interests and is a director
in Smart Elegant. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
rental expenses paid by the Group was HK$2,400,000 (2018:
HK$2,400,000).

Pursuant to the rental agreement dated 31 October 2018 made
between United Strategy Limited (“United Strategy”) and the
Company, the Company is entitled to occupy the premises for
the period from 1 November 2018 to 31 October 2019 in
accordance with the terms of the agreement. Ms. Wong, a
director of the Company, is interested in this transaction to the
extent that Ms. Wong has equity interests and is a director in
United Strategy. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
rental expenses paid by the Group was HK$336,000 (2018:
HK$164,000).

The material related party transactions entered into by our
Group are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements to this annual report.
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The transactions constitute as continuing connected
transactions but fully exempted from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Guotai Junan Capital Limited (“Guotai
Junan”) to be the compliance adviser. As informed by Guotai
Junan, neither Guotai Junan nor any of its directors or
employees or associates has or may have any interest in the
share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities),
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to
Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules, except for the compliance
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and
Guotai Junan dated 17 October 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Fong (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Lap Ping

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew

Mr. Chung Wing Yin

Mr. Law Yui Lun

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM"), each of Ms. Wong and Mr. Chan will
retire from office as Director by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Ms. Wong Wai Fong and Mr. Chan Lap Ping, being the
executive directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three month’s notice in
writing.

Each of Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew, Mr. Chung Wing Yin and
Mr. Law Yui Lun, being the independent non-executive directors
("INEDs"), has entered a letter of appointment for a term of one
year commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by either party giving to the other
at least one month’s notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
INEDs regarding his independence in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and therefore considers each of them
to be independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid to each of the senior management fell
within the following bands:
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Biographical details of the Directors and the Management of
the Group are set out on pages 17 to 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
None of the Directors or an entity connected with any of the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any
time during or at the end of the year ended 31 March 2019.

As of 31 March 2019, no contract of significance had been
entered into between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Directors confirm that as at the date of the Listing on 15
February 2017 and up to the date of this annual report, there
has been no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company'’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief
executives in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange: (a) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including any interests and short positions in which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (the "Register”), or (c) pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long position in our Shares
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(i) REMARGNEE

Number of
Name of Director/ shares held/ Percentage of
chief executive Capacity/nature of interest interested interest
e/ RAEER
BES fTRERNS 55/ RRMtE HRHBE EEEA
Ms. Wong Wai Fong (“Ms. Wong”) Nete?)Interest in controlled corporation 889,200,000 74.1%
Bt ((mrt])msn LB R
Mr. Kwok Yiu Chung (“Mr. Kwok") o2 Family interest 889,200,000 74.1%
FOBMR ST A ([ A ]) W2 EN
Notes: Htat -
1. Sure Wonder Investments Limited (“Sure Wonder”), which holds 1. EYEREARRRQA (fﬁi w1 % A
889,200,000 Shares, is owned as to 83.4% by Ms. Wong, 1.7% by 889,%OO£OQ%H§ ’731 CHERLT L
Mr. Kwok, 7.6% by Mr. Tam Wai Shing (“Mr. Tam"), 1.8% by Ms. G a%faﬁ)zs‘aiga%?ﬁin . {%%%&ﬁ
Yang Dongxiang ("Ms. Yang”) and 5.5% by Mr. Hui Chun Wah (“"Mr j:(fﬁ%ﬁtj)&ﬁ%i?ﬁi((a??ﬁij)
Hui”). As Ms. Wong is entitled to exercise more than one-third of D RIS 83.4% ~ 1.7% + 7,\6% ~1.8% K%
the voting power at general meetings of Sure Wonder, Ms. Wong é\5% HRNEL T EENEY R A
is taken to be interested in the 889,200,000 Shares in which Sure g LTEENR=hz—KRE#  SRE

Wonder is interested under the SFO.

2. Mr. Kwok, our chief executive officer, is Ms. Wong's spouse and is
deemed to be interested in 889,200,000 Shares in which Ms. Wong
is interested under the SFO.
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E@ 889,200,000 A% f% 17 A % B 1 2

2. IBBHRIBELESFLLHEMERRE

BERBEEAWEANEL L HEE
5 19 889,200,000 A& A% 17 A1 #E B %5 o

BRZERBRAQF /2019 FF R 65



Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

(ii) Long position in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

(i) REBZENEERNGER

Name of Number of Percentage of
Name of Director/ associated Capacity/ shares held/ interest
chief executive corporation nature of interest interested (approximate)
BE/HERR EEZEAL
B TRARKHS M EE AR a5/ RRtE HRHBE (#E49)
Ms. Wong (Nete ) Sure Wonder Beneficial owner 834 83.4%
s LW % ERERA
Family interest 17 1.7%
eV
Mr. Kwok (Nete Sure Wonder Beneficial owner 17 1.7%
SR A iy o ERERA
Family interest 834 83.4%
Rkt
Mr. Chan Lap Ping ™2 Sure Wonder Family interest 18 1.8%
RS 5 A 12 T Rl
Notes: B -
1. Mr. Kwok, our chief executive officer, is Ms. Wong's spouse and is 1. ITIRBE B EBE L THEEMRE

deemed to be interested in the shares of Sure Wonder held by Ms.
Wong under the SFO. Accordingly, Ms. Wong, our executive
director, is deemed to be interested in the shares of Sure Wonder
held by Mr. Kwok under the SFO.

2. Mr. Chan Lap Ping, our executive director, is the spouse of Ms.
Yang and is deemed to be interested in the shares of Sure Wonder
held by Ms. Yang under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the Register, or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at 31 March 2019, the
following substantial shareholder other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ Register”), or who
were directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
issued voting shares of the Company:

FERRRAQXARELEBEZENR
1~ HERO R EREE TSR %
B

BEEMM R2019F3A31H LT
FERF(ZESHIARBEEZTHRAER
AN AR D RABBERR (D P B IRIBFE H K&
HA & 160 38 XV B0 56 2 2 37 BF VI ST ZE [A)
RARFEENERIOAR  KEERIRE
BHREIEENIE 336 18 BFE N ANA T
T EERRELM]) HERSA
B S EESEERERNARIARARED
BELTRAD 10% S A _HHERS -

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company NEATEBRNVEAE
Percentage of
Number of held/ shareholding
Name Capacity/nature of interest interested (approximate)
Fits HERR BREBDE
®E 55 ERME R EE (BE4)
Sure Wonder (Note ! Beneficial owner 889,200,000 74.1%
i) BHAA
Note: Hiat -
1. In view of the concert party arrangement among Ms. Wong, Mr. Kwok, 1. EREaL - BrE BRE BRLTKEET

Mr. Tam, Ms. Yang and Mr. Hui, Ms. Wong, Mr. Kwok, Mr. Tam, Ms. Yang
and Mr. Hui together, through Sure Wonder, control an aggregate of
889,200,000 Shares, representing 74.1% of the issued share capital of our
Company. Hence, Ms. Wong, Mr. Kwok, Mr. Tam, Ms. Yang, Mr. Hui and
Sure Wonder are a group of Controlling Shareholders within the meaning
of the GEM Listing Rules.

REZEN—HITPHALRH  EX L 56
S EBELE BREIRFLEERREBTE
w15 1l & $£889,200,000 ik i 1 - HEE AR
AR BITRATLN% - Bt - Bt 2
£BEE BRE FREREYPRGEM
ETRAIFTE — AR -
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Interests and short positions of other persons in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at 31 March 2019, no
other persons had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares, which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the Substantial
Shareholders’ Register, or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the issued voting shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any persons who/entities which had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares that
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
recorded in the Substantial Shareholders’ Register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Director is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has no major customers due to the nature of
principal activities of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, purchases from our five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 44.4% (2018:
46.7%) of our total purchases of raw materials and consumables
consumed. During the same year, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 16.9% (2018: 17.3%) of our
total purchase of materials and consumables. None of the
Directors, their respective close associates, or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
significant beneficial interest in the major customers and
suppliers disclosed above.
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Our Directors believe that our Group maintains good working
relations with its business partners and it endeavours to improve
the quality of services to customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under
the laws of the Caymans Islands or the Articles of Association of
the Company (the "Articles of Association”) which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164(1) of the Article and Association, the
Directors of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices, or trusts. Such provisions were in force throughout the
year ended 31 March 2019 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ Liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

EERE ARBEEXBBHER R
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FEZ o
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 136 employees in Hong
Kong (2018: 206 employees in Hong Kong), who had passed the
probationary period. The total staff costs incurred, including
Directors’ emoluments, of our Group was approximately
HK$28.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately HK$35.5 million). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each individual's
performance, are paid to employees as recognition and in
reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits such as
medical insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are
offered to all our employees. Directors and other employees
who have made valuable contribution to the Group may also
receive options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.
Our Directors believe that the Group maintains good working
relations with its employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The operations of our hotpot restaurants in Hong Kong are
subject to environmental protection laws and regulations
promulgated by the government of Hong Kong. The Group has
devoted operating and financial resources to environmental
compliance as required by Hong Kong laws and regulations in
the future. Apart from the daily cleaning procedures adopted
by each of our hotpot restaurants, our Group also engaged
external cleaning companies, which are independent third
parties, to provide regular services for us, including pest control,
garbage collection, carpet cleaning, aquarium cleaning and
grease tank cleaning. The Group has also implemented policies
to ensure that there is minimal waste from our business
operations. For example, we equipped our hotpot restaurants
with a multi-functional food washer to minimise the use of
water. In addition, we also pay a sewage services charge which
comprises a sewage charge and a trade effluent surcharge and
the charge is based on the amount of water used. The sewage
services charges amounted to approximately HK$70,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2019. Our Directors are of the opinion
that the cost of compliance with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations for the year ended 31 March 2019 to be
immaterial.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance report is
expected to be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website no later than three months after the
annual report has been published.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 24 September 2019 to Monday, 30
September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of the shares will be registered. Shareholders are
reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Union
Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong not
later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 23 September 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 April 2019, Mr. Tam entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement (“SPA") with Mr. Kwok. Pursuant to the SPA, Mr.
Tam agreed to sell and Mr. Kwok agreed to purchase, 76
ordinary shares of Sure Wonder (representing Mr. Tam's 7.60%
shareholding in Sure Wonder)(the “Transfer”). The Transfer was
completed on 23 April 2019. After the Transfer, Sure Wonder
will be owned as to 83.4% by Ms. Wong, 9.3% by Mr. Kwok, 5.5%
by Mr. Hui and 1.8% by Ms. Yang.

On 1 June 2019, the Group had entered into an assets transfer
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser has agreed to acquire, the entire property, plant and
equipment of Smart Sky Enterprises Limited (the “Assets”) for a
consideration of HK$500,000. The carrying amounts of the
Assets are approximately HK$177,000 as at 31 March 2019.
Details of the sale of Assets are disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 2 June 2019.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment as auditors of the Company. A resolution for the
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Wai Fong
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Bl M5 gt 6 F % A R A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CBK
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to
159, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

BARFXEE
FAREZFASBRBEESNEXHE - ¥
BEEVAPR AR AERNS
He WERHEREBEFERGRAMBHRER
PUILHABRE —GHEE - FFT a5t
FEHEHRTRHEER -

on these matters.

Key audit matter
HEERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEvBERIFNNEEFARERSER

Revenue recognition from restaurants operations

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements
2RISR 7

We identified revenue recognition from
restaurants operations as a key audit matter
as revenue recognition is quantitatively
significant to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and material revenue transactions
may occur close to the end of the reporting
period.
EEEREERESEREERBN SERE
ZEE ARWaHRAYGEaBEalAm:e
EWZHERMEBFEKR - ARBRIIRSERR
AREBAEERW @RS -

Our audit procedures in relation to the revenue
recognition from restaurants operations including but not
limited to:

BEERREEREENNARREZREFBRETNRR

e obtaining an understanding of the revenue
recognition process for restaurants operations;

s THMERBZEMNWGERRER:

e  obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
processes and key controls, and testing key manual
and information technology controls for validity of
revenue recognition from restaurants operations;
and

e THWGZFEBREFLTZEEE WARFEAFR
BBIER  UREEREEMmERNKES

° performing test of details, on a sample basis, by
comparing the details and amounts of the
transactions selected with the details and amounts
shown on the underlying documentation, including
the journal vouchers and sales invoices.

o RHBEREMETRZINFERSEALMEE M
FIRHFBENR SR BRECEREMHERE &
TTRARRIE -

We found that the amount and timing of the revenue
recognition were supported by the available evidence.

EERT RN KRR RSEA ARG 2 BB
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
HEEZSE

BARFXZEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEzBERIFNNEERARERSER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

W - BB RRE BB
Refer to notes 5 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements

SRR AMEHRRMES K14

The Group has property, plant and
equipment in its chain of specialty hotpot
restaurants which is subject to impairment
assessment as the Group incurred loss before
tax of approximately HK$18,839,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2019.
EEEEHSFENRENYE BB ERE
XHEMETZE DAY EEEREZE
2019F3A3NALFREEEERBAIEERD
18,839,000 & 7T °

Management of the Group considers an
impairment indicator exists as the Group
incurred a net loss for the year ended 31
March 2019.

SEHEEERR/E BEEBREE2019%F
3H JMNRIEFEEABEFE  RBERE
PR o

Significant management judgements are
involved in determining the impairment loss
of the property plant and equipment of the
Group. This takes into account factors such
as market price of comparable assets,
condition and the trend on the price
fluctuation of the assets.

EET EEEYE BELKRBORES
BREFREBRERHAE - HE D ZRINATE
HREENTIHER AR REENEBRK
PBIAZTAE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the management'’s
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
include:

EEREREEBHYE  BELRRENREM GNEZIEF
B

e assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using
our valuation experts;

s REEFURBTENBERITZBESNHESR
AHEPTERAN AR AR RR 2 AR

e challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

s REEFZFHEBRITENER HHERBRRZEE
MIRHER &

e checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o I A% T R R ) B A\ B = 7 ZE 1 N A
7

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, but does not include in the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B M % B R

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B MR E R

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B M % B R

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

S A S 3
meBEakEtZERER
For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE
2019 2018
2019 §F 2018 4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEsd FET FET
Revenue Wz 7 92,099 122,653
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAR (35,491) (51,830)
Gross profit EA 56,608 70,823
Other revenue and other income Hiplgzs R EMU A 8 1,272 2,064
Staff costs 8T (28,274) (35,520)
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ ¥1% = LRETE
equipment (3,672) (3,543)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥1%f& KM MARIF 2 (25,143) (25,971)
Fuel and utility expenses Y RS YN E S (3,452) (4,354)
Impairment loss recognised in respect LY © B K&
of property, plant and equipment R EEE (2,170) -
Administrative expenses THFAX (14,008) (13,981)
Loss before tax BRBLAIE 1B 9 (18,839) (10,482)
Income tax (expense)/credit I (%), e 12 (1,722) 736
Loss and total comprehensive loss &R FHEE AEEFER
for the year attributable to BEREZHEEEARE
owners of the Company (20,561) (9,746)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARR#E (BL) 13 (1.71) (0.81)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2019 7201943 A31H

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment T N Y 14 10,503 10,911
Deferred tax assets REFITEEE 15 = 1,722
Non-current deposits and SERNERIR & K FET K18
prepayment 18 3,665 5,370
14,168 18,003
Currents assets REEE
Inventories 7E 16 234 323
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA 17 506 1,001
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - BRAFRER
other receivables Hith e GR IR 18 6,167 6,230
Prepaid tax TR IE 328 2,110
Amount due from ultimate FEU S 43 IR A A
holding company B 19 - 33
Amount due from a related company & — & BFH% A R FIE 19 51 -
Cash and cash equivalents WENIREEEY 20 45,466 62,345
52,752 72,042
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B 5 RENFIA 21 1,991 2,926
Accruals and other payables JEEtE R M EMmENRIE 22 4,482 6,111
6,473 9,037
Net current assets REEERE 46,279 63,005
Net assets EEFE 60,447 81,008
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital N 23 12,000 12,000
Reserves HE 48,447 69,008
Total equity ERAmE 60,447 81,008

The consolidated financial statements were approved and #RE M KEHRERENR2019F6A27BEE
authorised for issued by the board of directors on 27 June 2019 & #LE RIEET]E - WAHR T A LR

and are signed on its behalf by: REE
Wong Wai Fong Chan Lap Ping
EXR B3
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2 Wiz A Z 54 G HRE 2 B EP
consolidated financial statements. 2 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LIt 1PN
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Merger (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses) equity
REBA/
IS ki aE aftRE  (RHER) ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET FET FET
(note)
(Hizt)
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4R1H 12,000 56,198 591 21,965 90,754
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEBRZEESR
loss for the year o - - - (9,746) (9,746)
At 31 March 2018 and R2018F3A31AK
at 1 April 2018 20184 A1H 12,000 56,198 591 12,219 81,008
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBRZEER
loss for the year s - - - (20,561) (20,561)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A318 12,000 56,198 591 (8,342) 60,447

Note: The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
reorganisation as fully explained in the paragraph headed
"Reorganisation” in the section headed “History and Development” of
the prospectus of the Company dated 27 January 2017 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

fifat

SotREEIDEEEA(RARFHHR2017
F1A27ANBRERIEL RER ] E
Ml —BRh2EmEE) MBEANBRE 2K
AHEERRRFR/RZIGZERAMETT 2R
AREELZZR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities K& FZEREFRE
Loss before tax BRA AT ET 1R (18,839) (10,482)
Adjustments for: AT B IRFEE -
Bank interest income RITH BWA 8 (280) )
Impairment loss recognised ME - BB MR E
in respect of property, plant and HERIREE 18
equipment 14 2,170 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R&HEB
plant and equipment Wz 9 (70) -
Loss on written-off of property, WEEE - W KR
plant and equipment BB 9 1,658 4
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BEMEETE
equipment 14 3,672 3,543
Operating cash flows before EEESEHIKERS
movements in working capital mE (11,689) (6,937)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERELGEMm) 89 (78)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 JfE I Tk 18
WA (3g ) 495 (493)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e FENFRE M EA
prepayments and other receivables FEMCER IR A (35 00) 1,882 (2,213)
Decrease in amount due from JE WS AR A2 AR A R FRIE
ultimate holding company Ve 33 -
Increase in amount due from JE Wy — Rl B BSE A R 5RIB
a related company =il (51) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables & 5 @8 L),/
bl (935) 851
Decrease in accruals and JEET & A R HE M T FRIE
other payables YRR (1,629) (3,718)
Cash used in operations REFMARSE (11,805) (12,588)
Tax refund/(paid) REL(BRA)BIE 1,782 (2,263)
Net cash used in operating activities E&EBFTAERLTHE (10,023) (14,851)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 §F 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz THET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities REZHHRERE
Interest received 2 HF B 141 2
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE - BE&ERE
plant and equipment FriSsI8 42 -
Prepayment for acquisition of WEEM % - s K skt
property, plant and equipment AR RIE - (126)
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  BENMERE
equipment (7,039) (7,102)
Net cash used in investing activities REFHFTARESFH (6,856) (7,226)
Net decrease in cash and REeERBASEEBWRLD
cash equivalents HEE (16,879) (22,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RBEHBABRENEESR
beginning of the reporting period EHEEEY 62,345 84,422
Cash and cash equivalents at REFHERENREER
the end of the reporting period EEEEY 20 45,466 62,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

84

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8
September 2016 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its
ultimate holding company is Sure Wonder Investments
Limited (“Sure Wonder"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and owned by Ms. Wong Wai
Fong (“Ms. Wong”), Mr. Kwok Yiu Chung (“Mr. Kwok"),
and Ms. Yang Dongxiang and Mr. Hui Chun Wah
(collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”).
The address of the Company'’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of
business is Room 1501, 15/F., Vanta Industrial Centre, 21—
33 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 15 February 2017. The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding and the Group is principally engaged
in provision of catering services in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar ("HK$") which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (collectively referred to
as the “new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA,
which are effective for the Group's financial year beginning
from 1 April 2018. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRSs applied by the Group is set out as follows:

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement
of Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the
related Amendments

HKAS 28 (Amendments) As part of the Annual

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Except as described below, the application of other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial position and financial
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

2.

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at
1 April 2018.

The Group recognises revenue from the restaurants
operations which arise from contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when the catering services is
provided to customers.

Information about the Group'’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The application of HKFRS 15 did not have any impact on

the timing and amounts of revenue recognition as at 1
April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses ("ECL") for financial assets and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised at 1 April
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3 the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

2.

88

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary and effect arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9
All financial assets and financial liabilities continue to be

measured on the same bases as were previously measured
under HKAS 39.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been assessed individually. Based on the assessment by
the management of the Group, the directors consider the
ECL for trade receivables are insignificant at 1 April 2018.

Loss allowances for financial assets at amortised cost other
than trade receivable mainly comprise of deposits paid,
other receivables, amount due from ultimate holding
company and bank balances, are measured on 12-month
ECL ("12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For bank balances, the Group transacts with reputable
banks with high credit rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and consider the risk of default is
low and 12m ECL is insignificant.

For deposits paid, other receivables and amount due from
ultimate holding company, the management of the Group
makes periodic collective as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits paid, other receivables
and amount due from ultimate holding company based on
historical settlement records and past experience with
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Based on assessment by the management of
the Group, the directors consider the ECL for deposits
paid, other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company is insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEA#HFI RKET T BT KR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS EEA((EBMBREED ]
("HKFRSs") (Continued) (&)
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBUVEREERATIEEMHE
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet R A MA ] R IE ] HF AR5
effective: ERAER
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to BB EREER 2015F & 2017 F
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle' CCHES) BHEBRG
BREEBNER
gl
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business? BRI SRS LR EBHITER?
35 (BETR)
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with AT B RS ER BEEBHENE
Negative Compensation’ F95 (BETR) RERE
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI RS LR REEREHE
(Amendments) between an Investor and its F10WREELH AARBERE
Associate or Joint Venture® 8IIZE 2857 FZEEHER
CCHES) EAS
HKFRS 16 Leases' BEMBEREES HE'
165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BAT KRS EL RBALK
E17%:
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material® BB ENE1RR EANTE?
(Amendments) BEGHERE S
CCHES)
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment BRI ENE 195 FHEIERT - fERk
or Settlement! CHES) #E
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term interests in Associates BEEQENFE 28R RBEAIREE
and Joint Ventures' (BFTA) PEARBER'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B8 (BB SR E FTig iR IR~
Treatments' “wEZE9) FEE !
—ZEE 3%
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 1 R2019F 1 A1 B2 AN FER
2 Effective for business combination and asset acquisition for which 2 :‘/?\Lliﬁzgé HEAA2020F1 A1 Hs 2 &5
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual B EEEEEMAE  BOERS
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. PR EEWEEEM -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 3 R2020F1 A1 B 2 &M FEE
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 4 ;2%0;511 F1A1Bs 2B HIGNFEH
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 5 ;2%;;—5‘5 HEisk 2 BRABNFEEHB A
determined. R o
Except as described below, the directors do not anticipate BT £ - EETEEER
that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will Bzl MBI B BSR4 %
have a material impact on these consolidated financial B ZE G Al RETEEAY
statements. £
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

2.

90

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinction of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$26,095,000 as disclosed in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. The Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening accumulated losses without
restating comparative information.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTTHRME

POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the RRBIG A B HRREMERMN T
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are S BEREINEOT - BRB17:] 88

O REBRER 2B F

set out below. These policies have been consistently

92

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “"GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3. FEEHBERBE®

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued) (b) ?F%Eﬁ(f
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell N EDNEMS2EE ZEE
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly AERETHNAFRSFLEE

transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Levels 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

3. FEEHBERBE®

POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Basis of consolidation

94

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

*  has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repair and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of

lease terms or 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Catering and other equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

96

(e)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. When reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGU or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since
1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

3. FEEHBERBE®

(f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

98

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note
2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, deposits paid,
other receivables, amount due from a related
company and cash and cash equivalents). The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period
as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
credit card trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

3. FEEHBERBE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note
2) (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the end of the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether the credit
risk has increased significantly:

® an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

®  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread and the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

® an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note
2) (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
®  an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of the reporting period. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) it has a low risk of default; (ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of "investment
grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3.

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note
2) (Continued)
(i)  Definition of default
The Group considers that default has occurred
when the instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer of
the borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

* it is becoming probably that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note

2) (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over one year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice when appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note

2) (Continued)

104

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments;
° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purposes of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, deposits paid, other
receivables, amount due from ultimate holding
company and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEXBME®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial instruments (Continued)  EWMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) cRMEE(B)

Impairment of financial assets (before application THEERME(KR2018F4 51

of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) FEREBHMBREEREY

$EAT)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of A —REHRTHEREE

impairment at the end of each reporting period. EREEMARBEDR - HWEHB

Financial assets are considered to be impaired where M REFERA AR —E

there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or K ZERVBIEREMEER

more events that occurred after the initial recognition BEAMEIE SREEMNMGET

of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows AKREBEERZEZE B4t

of the financial assets have been affected. BEZTURE -

For all financial assets, objective evidence of EBEFESREE  BEMNE

impairment could include: BERE e

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or e BUITARBFIHBARE
counterparty; TSR

e breach of contract, such as a default or o EA) RS KT E
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or RS 5

e it becoming probable that the borrower will o  [ERARABEHESETT
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation. B E4E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (before application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

3. FEEHBERBE®
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On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
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carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals
and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Cash and cash equivalents

110

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Taxation (Continued)

3. FEEHBERBE®

(h)

BiE (%)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment in a
subsidiary, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investment is only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Taxation (Continued)

112

(i)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) is recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. The Group operates a MPF Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, with the employers’ contributions subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The
Group's contributions to the scheme are expensed as
incurred and vested in accordance with the scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions is
used to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss
represent contributions paid or payable to the funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control of the good or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the good or
service is transferred over time if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

3. FEEHBERBE®

)

BEEEHWE (REME28
BERXERAEBHMEREE
A% 1538%&)
BIEEBUEHREERZFE 15
5% B (e ) NEE T E LY
ERAEREENRBOERRT
HENERIREE [ 12 5] #
BB TR PR)RERE o

J’{E%@ffﬂé—lﬁﬁﬁfﬁuﬂuﬁﬁﬁ
B(—HE R RS —ES
K?&*HHE’]%%E&E&HE&W

B oo ok AR 75 A 2= il 42 AT BB BE R
B AN — AR EER -
fin THE A —IE R EEK

Al & 5 sk BR 75 #4758 ) 42 B 5 R
ﬂjﬁiﬁﬁ :

s EFPRBKBEEMAALE
BEBEITE MR
Gk

o AEEBAOREIEIET
EFEARREELE
B EE X

s AEERAORILEAIE—
BAKERNERZHNE
B MAKREEEGEA
SRHIITREM AT Z S
BRI B (EESRIA -
BRI WEEEFESKTEE
A 2 AR TS B 42 Bl E B 12 K — B
E R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract when time elapsed, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of goods
or services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a
product or service to a customer.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

116

()]

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Revenue from provision of food catering services
through a chain of hotpot specialty restaurants

The Group recognises revenue from restaurants
operations which provides catering services. Revenue
from restaurants operations is recognised at a point
in time when the services are rendered. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Promotion income

Under the terms of the contract, promotion income is
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for services provided in the normal course
of business and net of discount.

Revenue from restaurants operations is recognised
when catering services have been provided to the
customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(m)

Leases
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

118

(n)

(o)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group of any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

120

(o)

(p)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligation between the Group and a
related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

4., @I A
(a) EMITEEH

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised costs el S N 54,046 _
Loans and receivables B e WA - 73,205
Financial liabilities cREF
Amortised cost bl S N 6,473 9,037

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits paid, other receivables, amount
due from ultimate holding company, amount due
from a related company, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, accruals and other payables. Details
of the financial instruments for the Group are
disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk), credit risk and
impairment assessment and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group's exposure in respect of financial instruments
or the manner in which it manages and measures the
risks.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

4,

122

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management will
closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk
as a result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, deposits paid, other receivables,
amount due from ultimate holding company, amount
due from a related company and cash and cash
equivalents. At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade receivables

The Group trade with a large number of individual
customer and trading terms are mainly in cash and
credit card settlement. In view of the Group's
operation, the Group's trade receivables are primarily
credit card trade receivables and the directors
consider the credit risk is insignificant.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Deposits paid and other receivables

The management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits paid and other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred
loss model). The directors believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of deposits paid and other
receivables.

Amount due from ultimate holding company/a
related company

The Group had advanced to ultimate holding
company/a related company as at 31 March
2019/2018. The directors continuously monitor the
credit quality and financial positions of the
counterparties and the level of exposure to ensure
that the follow-up action is taken to recover the
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss model) on balances
individually. In this regard, the directors considered
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

4,

124

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

The Group deposited its cash with approved and
reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the
banks may cause the Group's right with respect to
cash and cash equivalents held to be delayed or
limited. The directors monitor the credit rating of
these banks on an ongoing basis, and considers that
the Group's exposure to credit risk were minimal.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by

the management. The management will raise bank
borrowings whenever necessary.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the details of the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date, on which the

4., E@WMIAH)

(b)

TREBEERENREE
(#&)

RBETERE(E)
TRETAKBEFTESHEA
BRI T AW EIBR - %X
REBEAREE K FAERARR
THAEBNARUERRESRER
B TRABPEBESEASLOR

Group can be required to pay. The amounts disclosed BRIR TR B ELAE
in the table are based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, are as follows:
Effective On demand Total Total
interest or within One to undiscounted carrying
rate oneyear  fiveyears  cash flow amounts
RERY RERRE EEE
BHRE -ER  -ZRE  FEHE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TEx TER
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H
Non-derivative FTEemas
financial liabilities
Trade payables BHEMNZE - 1,991 - 1,991 1,991
Accruals and other FEstE AR EAM
payables JE( 208 - 4,482 = 4,482 4,482
6,473 - 6,473 6,473
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €T AR (E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) cREAREEEMNREEX
policies (Continued) (8)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEESREE (8)
Effective  On demand Total Total
interest or within One to undiscounted carrying
rate one year five years cash flow amounts
e AERRSE REME
BRI —fx  —Z21F RERE it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TATL TEL THAL

At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H
Non-derivative FTESRAR
financial liabilities
Trade payables BHRNTE - 2,926 - 2,926 2,926
Accruals and other B R A -
payables EHIE 6,111 - 6,111 6,111
9,037 - 9,037 9,037
(c) Fair value of financial assets and financial (c) MAFEUINIARNEmME
liabilities carried at other than fair value ExcREENATE
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial 20194 %2018 3 8318 -
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not 1A S B SR AR A BR Y & Rl
materially different from their fair value at 31 March BEACREBENEEERR
2019 and 2018. RNPELEBEAER o
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4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amounts of dividend paid
to the shareholders, return on capital to the
shareholders or issue of new shares or repurchase of
existing shares as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group has adopted a capital policy primarily not
to finance its operation through borrowings. Based
on the Group's policy, the gearing ratio at the end of
the reporting period was zero (2018: zero).

4. €T AR (E)
(d) EXER

AEEEAEENEEARR
BRAEEABRELEHE
ho BRFRENBEARLL R
A FBEEXHEERRBRRG
ERAEE -

AEBEREEERAREEME
BEREBLUFLAE A&
BB BIRN T RRA K
B REENTBIRYH
1T #T AL 1D Sk BE [m3R 7 I fn DA K%
BITHESHBEBRRBER N
MR AR ERGERE -

REBEHEETIEAINRIED
ZERENR  REBHEBER
BRELNEFRITEESR -

AEBERA-—EEARE
TERTERBEFARESE
BRHEED - LASBEOBER
RER  BERROERL R
REQ018F &) °
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5.

128

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of financial assets

Prior to 1 April 2018, when there was an objective evidence
of impairment loss, the Group took into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss was measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actual future cash flows were less than expected or being
revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

On or after 1 April 2018, the loss allowances for financial
assets are based on assumption about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group use judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
year in which such determination is made.

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed
assets

Fixed assets are depreciated over their economic useful
lives. The assessment of estimated useful lives is a matter
of judgement based on the experience of the Group,
taking into account factors such as technological progress,
changes in market demand, expected usage and physical
wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets,
changes to the estimates used can result in variations in
their carrying amounts.

T HEBEREENEERE
(5&)

SREERMEE)

R2018F4 1B 2% ¢@EE
MEEREDRBENRR RTEH
EEENBEMETE FAEBRE
WEMRBEELBTES  BEH
MR BT MR BBAHEELS
R R R AT E A AR -

FRi&%t
AEBEYRBELEMEH - RNEE
PR BER AL ERAE - &
BEEBBEY  TIRXHEFAE
BREEMETE K BEENTIA © Wik
FEENREBRBEERE NIRRT
AR MRFZRRFEEL
BREEFENMEN MELERIA
B

B & & 2 &2 78 1] £ A A AT A4

[ 2 2R EL A A 42 PR 4 B
78 o A SR B E A DU 1 AT FE L
B R ETEREN  EEEE
MENERE  TREREE B
MR EWRR - A%EEEE RS
o A 4 PR 4 R A A«
BESHRE BEESHERGY
ZBBTHRE -
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6.

130

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of food
catering services through a chain of hotpot specialty
restaurants in Hong Kong. Information reported to the
Group’s management for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group's
resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
additional reportable segment and geographical
information have been presented.

7 EBE R

AEBNEIEXEBREBERTLEN
BHEENBEREERRE - &
RAEBERET BY BEH L=
DEHBHER - WAANEEEERE
EHRAHRDPEERLFERANE
MEINAEEBREBRERAE -
It B 2 DB INAT RS o B Mt

REVENUE 7. Wi
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Type of services: AREIEZY -
Provision of catering services through R&EBBBREESIZM
restaurants operations in Hong Kong &k iR 92,099 122,653

The Group's revenue for provision of catering services
through restaurants operations recognised at a point in

AEBEZEBREEGRHEENIRS
FI ER P — IE A R B T R

time.
OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 8. Hikm=RHEMUA
2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHT
Promotion income HEERA 644 1,507
Bank interest income RITHEWA 280 2
Tips income NEWA 174 278
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR
plant and equipment R 70 —
Others Hih 104 277
1,272 2,064
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BRBAEE
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B ATER IR ME(GFA) AT
BIHERSGE
2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEEEN & -
— Audit services — BZRTE 857 840
— Non-audit services — IEBZRTE 5 120
862 960
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 35,491 51,830
Depreciation of property, ME - BEKEEITE
plant and equipment 3,672 3,543
Impairment loss recognised in respect FE¥IZ% ~ BFE M & HHER
of property, plant and equipment BB R 2,170 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME « BE MREWE
and equipment (70) -
Loss on written-off property, WM - BEkREEE
plant and equipment 1,658 4
Minimum lease payments under MREBNPBAERBELE
operating lease in respect of BAORKEEERNK
restaurants and office premises 22,288 23,661
Employee benefit expenses (excluding B E @A (TBHEEE K
directors’ and chief executives'’ T BE S (MaE10))
remuneration (note 10)):
— Salaries, allowances, bonuses and — ¥4 - =28
benefits in kind TEAL R EWET 24,591 30,899
— Staff benefits — BI&H 117 279
— Retirement benefit scheme — R AT BIHE5K
contributions 1,112 1,407

25,820 32,585
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
REMUNERATION
The remuneration of directors and chief executives were
set out below:

10. EERITRARNE

B MITHRAMME ST -

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BZ2019F3A31HLEE

Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
bonuses benefits
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees inkind  contributions Total
e
R A RUKEA
ExHe RENEF TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TET TERT
Executive directors: HTES:
Ms. Wong BT - 480 18 498
Mr. Chan Lap Ping Ry FEE = 1,042 18 1,060
Independent non-executive BYFHTES .
directors:
Mr. Law Yui Lun BB 180 - - 180
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Mattew Gy Lt 180 = = 180
Mr. Chung Wing Yin EKERE 180 - - 180
Chief executives: THRAR
Mr. Kwok PrHE - 339 17 356
Mr. Zhang Chi (appointed on  3R3t 554 (R 2019 F
23 April 2019) AR 23ARZEH) - - - -
540 1,861 53 2,454
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

10. EERTHARME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

BZE018F3A3BILEFE

Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
bonuses benefits
and benefits scheme
Directors' fees inkind  contributions Total
e
AL AT RIKEF
EEHE REMREN PRI @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THL THL
Executive directors: HTESE
Ms. Wong BUL - 480 18 498
Mr. Chan Lap Ping BRyTEE - 1,042 18 1,060
Independent non-executive  BIUIFHTEE
directors:
Mr. Law Yui Lun EEBLE 180 - - 180
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Mattew gL A 180 - - 180
Mr. Chung Wing Yin BKERE 180 - - 180
Chief executive: TR -
Mr. Kwok PrHE - 819 18 837
540 2,341 54 2,935
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10.

134

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
and chief executives as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. None of
the directors or chief executives has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 March

2019 and 2018.

No share options were granted to the directors and chief
executives during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018.

Except as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its
ultimate holding company, or any subsidiaries of its
ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting
period or at any time during the year.
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. AEEESFMES

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
two (2018: two) directors, whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining
individuals are as follows:

REEBRAEERERS T2 A
TEE2ZBEE(2018F  2ZEE)
HM e ERGEATERENFE
10 HBp AT Z S BEENT -

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e~ RAL - TBELK
benefits in kind EWEH 1,527 1,647

Retirement benefit RKRE A ET B R

scheme contributions 49 54
1,576 1,701

The above individuals with the highest emoluments do not
include any senior management (2018: two senior
management) as disclosed in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management”.

The above individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following bands:

FiESHMA T TR EEM [E
EREREEE| —HEEZS R
EIBE(20184F : MEBREIEE) -

ERESHFMALOBMENTUT
80 -

2019 2018
2019 £ 20184
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,
no emolument were paid by the Group to the above
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BH 22019F3H31H K201843 A
JMNBALEFE  NEEWER A
TXNEAME ERMAREE
Y SR SRR B A (E o
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12.

136

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

12. FIBHAX(E%R)

2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EIHifi1E — FHB 5
Charge for the year FEXH - 165
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR - 1
- 166
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (note 15) EEMIEBRS(ER)
(Ktat 15) 1,722 (902)
1,722 (736)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for

the current year as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 12. Fr8%iBAx (&) (&)

The income tax expense/(credit) for both years can be RABEEENFSHRBEY(EK%)
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated NG ESMEMEEIKREREN
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive R eERBEERENT -

income as follows:

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss before tax MRBLATE R (18,839) (10,482)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits BEEABNEHRE16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% STEMHIE (3,108) (1,730)
Tax effect of: MIBRE -
Expenses not deductible ASAT AR A 2
for tax purpose 86 30
Income not taxable for tax purpose  FERRFIHA (58) -
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR -
Accelerated accounting depreciation IR G &E B L BRERIE
over tax depreciation over provided — #T & #E# 567 -
Estimated tax losses not recognised — ARMERAFTHIAEIE 4,235 1,126
Utilisation of estimated tax losses AT EERY
previously not recognised (R RiZelats - (133)
One-off reduction of Hong Kong BB —RIERREE
Profits Tax by Inland Revenue MiSH
Department = (30)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrisBipax (&) 1,722 (736)
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13.
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LOSS PER SHARE

The computations of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

13. BREE

ARAEEAREERERN N EE
ERIEA TN BUEAE

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAET
Loss BB
Loss for the purposes of basic and AR EERER L #E
diluted loss per share (loss EEZBE(KARIERA
for the year attributable to owners ERFEEBE)
of the Company) (20,561) (9,746)
2019 2018
2019 20184
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Numbers of shares ROBE
Weighted average number of ordinary FIR it E &R E AN #E
shares for the purposes of calculating  [E518 2 Ji#EF 15 @
basic and diluted loss per share B 1,200,000 1,200,000

The calculation of basic loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018 is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares.

Diluted loss per share were same as the basic loss per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in

issue.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BMERERE

Catering
Leasehold Furniture  and other Motor
Improvement and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
HE BRI R BERK
MERE EERE HithR AE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  TEr  TET AR TER
Cost B
At 1 April 2017 R2017E4 A1H 10,919 3,586 6,301 378 21,184
Additions NE 3,829 669 2,604 - 7,102
Written-off I - - (16) - (16)
At 31 March 2018 and R2018F 3 A31H R
at 1 April 2018 R20185F4H1H 14,748 4,255 8,889 378 28,270
Additions NE 4,606 593 1,335 600 7,134
Disposals & - - (66) (378) (444)
Written-off HisH (8,102) (1,370) (1,308) - (10,780)
At 31 March 2019 R 201943 A31H 11,252 3,478 8,850 600 24,180
Accumulated depreciation ZAERAE
and impairment
At 1 April 2017 RK2017F4H18 5873 3,089 4,555 31 13,828
Charge for the year FEHRAY 2,582 193 701 67 3,543
Written-off iG] - - (12) - (12)
At 31 March 2018 and R2018%3A31A K
at 1 April 2018 R2018F4H 1R 8,455 3,282 5,244 378 17,359
Charge for the year FERAX 2,421 220 1,018 13 3,672
Impairment loss AERE 1,250 176 576 168 2,170
Eliminated on disposals HEBEH - - (24) (378) (402)
Written-off g (7,075) (1177) (870) - (9,122)
At 31 March 2019 R20196 38318 5,051 2,501 5,944 181 13,677
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3A31H 6,201 977 2,906 419 10,503
At 31 March 2018 201863 H31H 6,293 973 3,645 - 10,911

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the
related property, plant and equipment and as a result the
carrying amount of these property, plant and equipment
were written down to their recoverable amount of
approximately HK$10,425,000. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of these property, plant and
equipment by using fair value less costs of disposal model
based on depreciated replacement cost method. The
inputs on which the recoverable amounts are based on are
categorised as Level 2 measurement.

MRZEME  BEREKENERER
B R 2 H AT Uk [e] 6 58 49 10,425,000
B AEBEBREEBEYE - K
B REEHTKE 58 - AEEIR
BIESEERANEFER A FERD
EXNAEXTEZEVE  BEK
RBH AT RE S - AR E
BRRABBIOEAFE _RTE -
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15.

140

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the deferred tax balances recognised
and movements thereon:

15. EERIBEE

EHERIRIETIRAER LR EEMT

Accelerated

tax
Tax losses depreciation Total
RIEEE MEBEFE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THETT
At 1 April 2017 201764418 562 258 820
Credit to profit or loss AR
(note 12) (et 12) 763 139 902
At 31 March 2018 and 20183 A31 B K
1 April 2018 201854 A1 H 1,325 397 1,722
Charge to profit or loss BEm kR
(note 12) (Bfaz12) (1,325) (397) (1,722)

At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H

The Group has unused estimated tax losses of
approximately HK$43,260,000 (2018: HK$17,593,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of unused estimated
tax losses (2018: approximately HK$9,563,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams and unrecognised
tax losses could be carried forward indefinitely.

The directors perform periodic assessment on the
probability that future taxable profits will be available
which the deferred tax assets can be realised or utilised. In
assessing the probability, both positive and negative
evidences were considered, including whether it is
probable that the operations will have sufficient future
taxable profits which the deferred tax assets can be
deductible or utilised and whether the tax losses result
from identifiable causes which are unlikely to recur.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, amounts of
approximately HK$1,325,000 and HK$397,000, represent
the deferred tax balance of tax losses and accelerated tax
depreciation respectively were charged to profit or loss
(note 12 to the consolidated financial statements).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

16. INVENTORIES 16. B8
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Food and beverage, and other Ry E R K H Ath
operating items for EBEEEMS
restaurants operations KB IE B 234 323
Inventories are expected to be recovered within one year GEESER—ERLE - Ragn
and were carried at net realisable value. SRAE I BE o
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. B EWFI18

There was no credit period granted to individual customer
for the restaurant operations. The Group's trading terms
with its customers are mainly by cash and credit card
settlement. The settlement terms of credit card companies
are usually within 7 days after the service rendered date.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise the credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade receivables balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice dates, which approximates

BERERCENENRFIREE
B AEEEEEFHR HIER
ABEBURENERARER - A
RARMGEBRE BIRHERSE A
HA% 7 KA o

REE K5 WK EIE B IGRIR
MR EE - UREREEERR
ANEE W ELE 5 R U GKIA G R
BEMERRREMEEFTRER -

PATT /iR 3% 52 B A (5240 B W as e 230
B HIAEAT) 2518 5 R (F0 kR

the respective revenue recognition dates and net of REEEAE) BRI DA -
allowance for doubtful debts:

2019 2018
2019 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER THETT
0-30 days 0&30H 504 996
31-60 days 31£260H - 2
61-90 days 61£90H - 1
Over 90 days @90 H 2 2
506 1,001

Trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired, with

good credit quality and have no default of payment in the

past.

Details of assessment for expected credit losses under

HKFRS 9 are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BZRWHIAY EaHgiRE B
EERERIMBEEE R -

BRMBREENFE IR THIEME
EEBRMENFBIHRNES MR
RHTEES
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

18. NON-CURRENT AND CURRENT DEPOSITS, 18. AR BNRE - ENARIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES K EL{th FE W IE
Non-current portion FEENEABR 40
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FH&T
Rental deposits HERE 3,564 5,244
Prepayment for acquisition of property, SLUKIBYI % - = M REHTE
plant and equipment (DB 101 126
3,665 5,370
Current portion BN HA &R 10
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
Rental deposits HERE 2,129 2,517
Utility and other deposits NHEERAMES 1,653 1,757
Prepayments TafFRIE 1,708 1,648
Other receivables Hitb el 1A 677 308
6,167 6,230
Details of assessment for expected credit losses under ARV BEREERE IR THIEEE
HKFRS 9 are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial EEBNENFBERRNEGEVB®
statements. FMEE4 -
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING 19. BRBKERNT,— B

COMPANY/A RELATED COMPANY NIE /@]
Particular of the amount due from ultimate holding e S 2l NI E O3 = (TN

company is as follow:

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
Amount due from ultimate W& A ZER A RRIE
holding company
Sure Wonder FY = 33
The maximum amount due from ultimate holding company RB|EBRAR > RBRERAFTNES
during the reporting period are as follow: LT
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR Fi
Amount due from ultimate PEUN B A2 IR A R R IE
holding company
Sure Wonder EY 33 33
The amount due from ultimate holding company is g $ - Sl S/NE] /T/\IE/'%E}RTEE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. % B NRITER(EE
Particular of the amount due from a related company is as e —ME R A R IEFIBIT ¢
follow:
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Amount due from a related company FE Ut — BB E# A BB
Smart Elegant Enterprises Limited BRELEARAR([RE])
(“Smart Elegant”) 51 -
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

19.

20.

144

AMOUNT DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING 19.

FE B AR IER D R — B

COMPANY/A RELATED COMPANY (Continued) NFEIE (8)
The maximum amount due from a related company during PRERA - BIR—EEH QM
the reporting period are as follow: ResCARAT
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
Amount due from a related company F& U — 5 BF B¢ 2 T 3% 18
Smart Elegant ®ik 51 —
The amount due from a related company is unsecured, JE Y — FE] B Bk 2 B RIE R A

interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of assessment for expected credit losses are set

BB SIRBRIER

BHEEEBRFENFRENGS

out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. BTSRRI EES -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. RERBEELEEY
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Cash and bank balances HE NIREEY 15,466 62,345
Short-term time deposits RHHFETER 30,000 -
45,466 62,345

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
Short-term time deposits are made for three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposits rates at 1.92% (2018: N/A) per annum.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks
are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit
losses is provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. EZENARIE
The following is aging analysis of trade payables presented NTRIZEZEHZINE 5 EN
based on the invoice dates: TIRRRER AT

2019 2018

2019 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

0-30 days 0&230H 1,960 2,926

Over 90 days 90 B LA 31 -

1,991 2,926

The average credit period granted by suppliers are usually

within 30 days.

HIA -

HEBETHFEEEHATE R0

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. EstERA R EMEATRIE
2019 2018
2019 & 2018 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHT
Accruals JEE & A 4,448 6,038
Other payables H fth FE A TR IE 34 /3
4,482 6,111
BEIERER AT /2019 FF R 145
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. B7&
No. of shares Amount
BHEE -]
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 £ 2018 2019 20184
‘000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T THET FET
Ordinary share of BAR0.017ET
HK$0.01 each 2 &k
Authorised: EE
At the beginning and PR & B & HR A%
the end of the reporting
period 2,000,000 2,000,000 20,000 20,000
No. of shares Amount
REEE &8
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 % 20184 2019 % 20185
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i B FER TR
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBERE :
At the beginning and PR E B0 S AR
the end of the reporting
period 1,200,000 1,200,000 12,000 12,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

24. COMMITMENTS 24. FiE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REFHPYARE
The Group as lessee AEBEERABEA
The Group leases certain restaurants and office AREBRBEZLEROLZHERE
premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases ETRERBASYWE 2%
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging MENHALEREN T —F
from one to seven years. At the end of reporting EHF o RIEHLERE - K
period, the Group had commitments for future SERBETTREEEE BT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EERREEESFIBEAN D
operating leases falling due as follows: BT
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
Within one year —F R 11,511 12,973
In the second to fifth years, F_FEFRF
inclusive (BREEEMSE) 14,584 26,328
26,095 39,301
The Group does not have an option to purchase the 7N £5 B R 12 0 AE B E U
leased premises at the expiry of the lease period. BEHEME -
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAEYE
The Group had the following outstanding AKERHERRE U TRE
commitments at the end of the reporting periods: EAE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Authorised and contracted, but FUATEEEZER
not provided for: AT RB I R BB
— Acquisition of property, plant ~ — W% - BB &&RE
and equipment 67 84

BRZERBRAQF /2019 FF R 147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE201943 A31 HIEFE

25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 25. ZRFMBRRKREFHEEE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) ARTAHMBARREK
Company
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBARIRE — -
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TE IR R A A,
and other receivables FEU IR 313 177
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 737 938
Cash and cash equivalents BeME2EED 39,760 49,409
40,810 50,524
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JEETE B M E bR FIE 116 335
Amounts due to subsidiaries Sl EPNGIE - 6
Total liabilities wEeE 116 341
Net assets EEFEE 40,694 50,183
Capital and reserves EARK#E
Share capital A& 2 12,000 12,000
Reserves e 28,694 38,183
Total equity ERBHE 40,694 50,183
On behalf of the Board: REE=S
Wong Wai Fong Chan Lap Ping
BEEF Ry
Director Director
- o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 25. AR BRARRREEEE

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Movement of reserve of the Company (b) AATRESE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R E ZiT e st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 18 56,198 (15,800) 40,398
Loss and total FEBBEEREE
comprehensive loss EResR
for the year - (2,215) (2,215)
At 31 March 2018 and at 201843 A 31 H &
1 April 2018 201844 A1 H 56,198 (18,015) 38,183
Loss and total FEEBEEIER
comprehensive loss EEERE
for the year - (9,489) (9,489)
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 56,198 (27,504) 28,694

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. EXBEE AR S

(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (@) BHEAFBHMRAMIBYATHE
financial statements, during the year, the Group TEE TN AN B A R R
entered into the following material transactions with FEIELTEAR S :
parties:

2019 2018
2019 ¥ 20184
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHx FHT

Rental expenses paid to R NCIFR kA

related company:

— Smart Elegant — ®i& 2,400 2,400
— United Strategy Limited — B NRBEERAT] 336 164
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26.

27.

150

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 ERBBARS (&)

(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the by REBFEEIEABEHRIM(E
Group, including directors’ and chief executives’ B S ERENET10IHE
remuneration as disclosed in note 10 to the BENTREHMS) T
consolidated financial statement, is as follows:

2019 2018
2019 2018 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and  #% - 328 -~ B4 &
benefit in kind EWEn 2,531 2,974

Retirement benefits RIRTEFIET B

scheme contributions 85 85
2,616 3,059

(c) Details of the balances with related parties at the end () RI|EHLERTEBE H &8
of the reporting period are set out in note 19 to the W IBE R ARG ISR & 5
consolidated financial statements. 19 °

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BB ESTE

The Company's Share Option Scheme was conditionally
adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the
shareholders passed on 20 January 2017 (“Share Option
Scheme”).

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme s to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-
time), directors, consultants, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.
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e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such
terms as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time
or part-time), director, consultant or adviser of the
Group, or any substantial shareholder of the Group,
or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the
Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (C) below for such
number of shares as it may determine in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant
of any option shall be determined by the Board (or as
the case may be, our independent non-executive
directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Price of shares

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share on the date of grant of the
option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted
within seven days inclusive of the day on which such
offer was made. The amount payable by the grantee
of an option to the Company on acceptance of the
offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.0.

27. BREEFTE (&)

(B)

(C)

(D)

BRZERBRAQF /2019 FF R
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HEE - IAKREEAEER
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(E) Maximum number of shares

152

(a)

Subject to sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) below, the
maximum number of shares issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose,
shares issuable upon exercise of options which
have been granted but which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of
the Company) must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the Listing Date (taking no account of any Shares
may be issued upon the exercise of the Offer
Size Adjustment Option). Therefore, it is
expected that the Company may grant options
in respect of up to 120,000,000 Shares (or such
numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 120,000,000
Shares from time to time) to the participants
under the Share Option Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be
refreshed at any time by approval of the
shareholders in general meeting provided that
the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed 10% limit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. BRRESTE (5)

(E) Maximum number of shares (Continued) (E)
(c) The Company may seek separate approval by
the shareholders in general meeting for granting
options beyond the 10% limit provided the
options in excess of the 10% limit are granted
only to grantees specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought.

(d) The aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of
the Company if this will result in such 30% limit
being exceeded.

(F) Maximum number of shares of each (F)

participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by
shareholders in general meeting with such grantee
and his associates abstaining from voting.

G EE LR (&)

() ARBMAIERRERAE L
SRERAZITHER LB
#10% LR A0 AHE - HE
18 10% LR HV i At (2
ARTEFR DA ER D
BERRDRIRETERERA o

(d) RITERERERERT S &
AN A B Al R B At
SRR ARITEN 2
R R I 5 AT BE B TT VAR
DR TREBBTED
AT B9 30% © ANAR &
B AEA 8l AR R
H i BB At 1% H AR
IR HEIE i 30%H &
PR RIS BB R -

E2HEENERELR

BERDL A B ER 1218 A H
AR AEF2EETERE
BRI RT 8IS A R RME T E At
BRI BB RE (B
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(G) Grant of options to certain connected persons

154

(a)

Any grant of an option to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company (or any of their respective associates)
must be approved by independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the
option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director (or any of their respective associates)
will result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted to such
person under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company
at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million,

such further grant of options is required to be
approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company, with voting to be
taken by way of poll.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(H) Time of exercise of option

(n

()

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

Exercise of share options

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no
general requirement that a share option must be held
for any minimum period before any of the options
can be exercised.

Cancellation of options granted but not yet
exercised

Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised
may be effected on such terms as may be agreed
with the relevant grantee, as the Board may in its
absolute discretion sees fit and in a manner that
complies with all applicable legal requirements for
such cancellation.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
option has been granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

27. B fERTE ()
(H) 1THERBREAEFIR

(n

W)

ERARIRESES A BEER A
HiE - BN RIEB AR S
fRRITIE B AR - R
SHRARHBHES+F I
XA BRI AR L IRSXATARIR -

BRENTE
BRIEEFERHRE  ARNE

BRI LB LB
BRSN - I 4 AR TE BB IR N 1T
A A2 HfE

AHCREEMRITENE
R
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EREBREHENEREER
AN ERBSAEBEARA
REETHRT  EHERH
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FEEZE2019F K 20183 A31H I
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by

156

the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

out below.

28. BN EIFEE

RRERRARFBEEREERFA
HM B A RIFFBHEIIAT

Proportion of
Nominal value

Place/country of Issued and of paid up and
Incorporation/ Class fully paid issued capital held
Name of subsidiary operation of share share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRR
H A BERTR BMEREBRTREMN
HELRAE EENHE /BR  ROEH BERA LA FEXHK
2019 2018
2019  2018%F
% %
Asian Energy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100  Sales of food products
SMENBRAF £ il 10,000% 7T HERMEM
Country Way Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 100 Provision of management
Corporation Limited consultancy services
BXBRAF EB il 100787 RUERERRSE
Full Field Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of
Limited catering services
XEEBRARRA £ il 10,000% 7T REERRH
Grand York Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100  Dormant
Development Limited
IBREERARAA £ il 18T TEXH
Harvest Wealth Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of catering
Enterprises Limited services
KELEARAF £ il BT REEARRSG
Honour Star Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of catering
Limited services
BELEARAF £ il 1B REERRH
Jetech Consultants Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Provision of catering
services
BEEERARRA £ il 2587 REERRH
Landshine Inc Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of catering
services
ERERADA £ il 10,000 % 7T REERR
Lead Merit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000 100 100 Dormant
FEAERRA BB il 60,0007 7T TEXH
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of
Nominal value

28. B A RIS (&)

Place/country of Issued and of paid up and
Incorporation/ Class fully paid  issued capital held
Name of subsidiary operation of share share capital by the Company Principal activities
PN g3
HEMRL BETR HERERITRAH
HELRRE EENWE HR  ROER HERAK HEfE Ll TEEK
2019 2018
2019 2018
% %
Moly Power Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of catering
services
BHARAT e Lk 18T REBFRS
Most Will Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$640,000 100 100 Provision of catering
services
21N e Lk 640,00075 70 REBFRS
Smart Sino Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Dormant
Limited
LESELE] YN e Lk 1T EmER
Smart Sky Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of catering
Limited services
[LONTEL] NG e Lk 1T REBFRS
Sunny Days Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Dormant
Limited
ABEERAA e Lk 1T EmER
Sunny Galaxy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Provision of catering
services
TRIEARAA] e Lk 2B REBFRS
Sunny Shadow Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Provision of catering
services
BYHARAA e Lk 1T REBFRS
Sure Gain Global Limited BV Ordinary Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
("Sure Gain")
PUERIFBERAF([UE]) REBEIHES Lk (EI REER
Tsui Bo Restaurant Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Dormant
RELZEARATA e Lk 2B EmER
Voyage Won Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100  Dormant
LA BERAHE e Lk 10,0007 7T EmER
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28.

29.

158

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Except Sure Gain is directly held by the Company, all other

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme,
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2018: HK$1,500)
and they can choose to make additional contributions.
Employers monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of
the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (2018: HK$1,500) (the “mandatory
contributions”). Employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement
at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by the

Group are disclosed in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE2019F3 A31 HIEFE

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

31.

32.

33.

The Group had entered into the follow non-cash investing
activity, which has not been reflected in the consolidated
statement of cash flow:

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
disposed of certain property, plant and equipment with
the carrying amount of nil at a consideration of HK$70,000,
which was used as upfront deposit for the acquisition of
certain property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
acquired certain property, plant and equipment with the
amount of approximately HK$42,000, of which
approximately HK$25,000 was paid during the year ended
31 March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 June 2019, the Group had entered into an assets
transfer agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group has agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to acquire, the entire
property, plant and equipment of Smart Sky Enterprises
Limited (the “Assets”) for a consideration of HK$500,000.
The carrying amounts of the Assets are approximately
HK$177,000 as at 31 March 2019. Details of the sale of
Assets are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 June 2019.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 at
April 2018. Under the transition methods, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes
in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statement were approved and
authorised for issued by the Board on 27 June 2019.

30. TEFHEXRZ

31.

32.

33.

AREBERIY MRS REES
HY KRG ERERERRB -

HZE2019F3A3MBILFEE A&
EEHEREAEASNE TWE -
B K& - B A&70,000% T
ERKEBETYE  WELZHESN
Tt E -

HE2019F3A31HILEE » K&
HEEWEETWE  BEREKEL
42,0007 7T © R # £2018F 3 A 31
HIEFEEZ A EF 4250008 T °

REHEEE

R2019F6 A1 H » REBEH—FE
VE=ZHTEFDILEESEZER
OB AKBEERELHEME
FEREBEERLGEBRARAS
HME - -HMERERHBIEE] K
{& /500,000 7T ° 7220194 3 A 31
H  BERAEBELA177,00087T -
BAEEEENFBER AR A H
B2019F 6 A2HMAERHE -

L ER
REBPR2018F4BNKBERES
ISR 2RI O R BB IS
ERE155 - IRIBBEE WARE
FILLEBER - BRASTHREEZEHN
HE— B BEBEREA M ERRM
20

HEFESMB®RE

KA A B RERN 201996 A 27 H
EEEe I E N IRETE -
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENBE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and

BI5E GEM EEBIZE 18.33 T2 » A&

liabilities of the Group pursuant to Rule 18.33 of the GEM EXEUREEREGEHME (RWEEEA

Listing Rules, as extracted from the prospectus of the Company,

is set out below:

2 RRRFERER)EIIAT

Year ended 31 March
BEIANBLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 2018 F 2017 20164 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT FHT FHTT FHT
Results *E
Revenue s 92,099 122,653 134,758 134,296 130,784
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT (B518), %A (18,839) (10,482 (6,145) 9,576 9,641
Income tax (expense)/credit  FT5F: (Fsx) % (1,722) 736 (1,912 (1,420) (1,464)
(Loss)/profit and total FE(FR),/BAR
comprehensive (loss)/ 20 (B8) WE
income for the year FLRL (20,561) (9,746) (8,057) 8,156 8,177
(Loss)/profit and total UTNREEGFEE
comprehensive (loss)/ (B#8),/BFKR2E
income for the year (B518) WA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KAEER A (20,561) (9,746) (8,256) 8,200 8,177
Non-controlling interests FEPERRRE =5 - - 199 (44) -
(20,561) (9,746) (8,057) 8,156 8,177
At 31 March
R3A31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 2018 F 2017 & 2016F 20154
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FET FHET FET FHET
Total assets BEE 66,920 90,045 103,256 52,318 41,584
Total liabilities BeE (6,473) (9,037) (12,502) (9,586) (7,018)
Net assets EEZRE 60,447 81,008 90,754 42,732 34,566
Equity attributable to AUNSIE RPNy
owners of the Company 60,447 81,008 90,754 42772 34,566
Non-controlling interests Eluli g - - - (40) -
Total equity EREE 60,447 81,008 90,754 42,732 34,566
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